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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone, and welcome to today's hearing.  I'd like

          4  to welcome you all here.

          5                 Today, the Civil Service and Labor

          6  Committee, as well as the Veterans Committee, will

          7  hold an oversight hearing, and to examine New York

          8  City's Operation and During Freedom Extended

          9  Benefits Package for all those City employees who

         10  have been called for military duty.

         11                 We will also discuss the merits of

         12  Reso. 399A, which calls upon the Bloomberg

         13  Administration to exclude the value of housing and

         14  food when calculating military pay pursuant to the

         15  Extended Benefits Package.

         16                 Over 1,600 City employees have been

         17  called to military service since 2001.  After

         18  returning from duty, many City employees have been

         19  issued large bills to repay part of the military pay

         20  or City salary under the Extended Benefits Package.

         21  And in many cases, much confusion and frustration

         22  exists, due to the City's delay in calculating these

         23  repayment amounts.

         24                 These Committees today, for this

         25  oversight hearing, want to know why these large
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          2  repayment bills exist.  Why the delay? Who is

          3  responsible for these calculations?  And how these

          4  calculations are obtained.  And more importantly,

          5  what can be done to assist these dedicated City

          6  workers who are also veterans serving our country.

          7  And we must be mindful of this fact, that with no

          8  end in sight for the skirmish in Iraq and in

          9  Afghanistan, this issue needs to be heard and

         10  addressed today for the veterans of tomorrow and

         11  beyond.  And that is why we are holding this hearing

         12  today.

         13                 So I look forward to the witnesses

         14  who are going to give testimony today, all

         15  witnesses.  And I look forward to working forward

         16   --  looking forward to working with the

         17  Administration and those involved, so that these

         18  issues can be resolved.

         19                 And at this point, I'd like to

         20  introduce the Chairman of the Committee on Veterans,

         21  Council Member Hiram Monserrate.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         23  Council Member Addabbo, and good morning to all.

         24  Welcome to today's joint hearing of the Committee on

         25  Civil Service and Labor and the Veterans Committee.
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          2  I'm Council Member Hiram Monserrate.  I have the

          3  privilege of Chairing the Veterans Committee.

          4                 Today's oversight hearing will deal

          5  with the issue of the Administration's Operation and

          6  During Freedom Extended Benefits Package.  There are

          7  over 1,600 City employees affected by this benefits

          8  package.  The package requires City employees who

          9  are called up for military duty to sign and

         10  agreement to remit the lesser of either the

         11  employees or City salary, upon return from military

         12  duty.  Since the Administration's policy is to

         13  include the cost of food and housing an employee

         14  receives while serving in the military, when

         15  calculating such employees military salary, the

         16  employee is usually forced to return his or her City

         17  salary as the lesser of the two salaries.  Thus,

         18  employees who sign the Extended Benefits Package

         19  agreement before leaving for military duty are now

         20  faced with bills for up to tens of thousands of

         21  dollars.

         22                 Our City employees have been willing

         23  to make the ultimate sacrifice before leaving for

         24  military duty.  They were offered a benefits package

         25  system that does not work, and needs to be changed.
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          2                 These Committees also intent to

          3  explore today why now, five years after the  first

          4  soldiers were deployed, soldiers and service members

          5  were deployed, the City has finally begun tallying

          6  up bills for police officers and other employees.

          7                 We expect to hear from the Department

          8  of Citywide Administrative Services, as well as the

          9  City employees who are affected by the Extended

         10  Benefits Package, and other military veterans and

         11  support groups.

         12                 Council Member Monserrate is also a

         13  veteran of the United States Marine Corps.  And a

         14  former NYPD officer, just for the record.

         15                 I also want to take the opportunity

         16  to recognize all my colleagues that are attending

         17  today's hearing.  We are joined by Council Member

         18  Dennis Gallagher, from Queens; Andy Lanza, from

         19  Staten Island; Louis Fidler, from the borough of

         20  Brooklyn; Jimmy Oddo, also from Staten Island; Tony

         21  Avella, from Queens; James Gennaro, from Queens; and

         22  the other Member will be making an opening statement

         23  also, the introducer of today's resolution, Council

         24  Member McMahon.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you
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          2  Chairman Monserrate, and thank you Chairman Addabbo.

          3  And Council Member Nelson, I know both you and

          4  Council Member Monserrate are veterans. And Council

          5  Member Addabbo, your passion for this issue is very

          6  much appreciated.  And to my colleagues, I

          7  appreciate their attendance.

          8                 I am very encouraged to see that

          9  Commissioner Hirst is here from DCAS, and the

         10  Mayor's representative for Veterans Affairs.

         11  Because I know that when sensible, reasonable minds

         12  look at this issue, and that when the Bloomberg

         13  Administration as a whole looks at this issue, I

         14  have to be hopeful that we cannot allow what to most

         15  of us on this side of the table, seems to be an

         16  injustice, which has occurred perhaps not

         17  intentionally  --  and I'm sure not intentionally

         18   --  because I think originally, perhaps the

         19  Administration's intentions were very noble.  But

         20  what has happened, I think, is really just a very,

         21  very bad thing.

         22                 Because I think when our country and

         23  our City asks our reservists and our soldiers to put

         24  their uniforms on and go and fight the war on terror

         25  after 9- 11, I know, for our parts, there was an
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          2  implicit promise made that you will go fight for us,

          3  and we will stand by you throughout the duration of

          4  your service.  And when you come home, we will stand

          5  by you and your families, to make sure that you

          6  don't have to suffer any more than the service that

          7  you rendered.  And unfortunately, what has begun to

          8  happen, especially this Spring, is that men and

          9  women who served in the Armed Forces, City

         10  employees, mostly uniformed, would come home, and

         11  after getting back with their lives, were receiving

         12  bills, which in effect, spelled financial ruin,

         13  financial disaster for them.  Some received bills of

         14  $200,000, money that they had to return.  And were

         15  told if they don't return it in 30 days, that

         16  process would begin against them.

         17                 I am hopeful that we can work to an

         18  accord that will have the City forgive any claim for

         19  the basic housing and food allowance.  And will also

         20  take a hard look at the tax and Social Security

         21  issues that confront these men and women.  And for

         22  the record, I will state that the resolution before

         23  us speaks primarily to the issue of basic

         24  allowances.  We will amend it to include

         25  consideration of tax unfairness and Social Security
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          2  unfairness, and bring it back for a vote to the

          3  Council, if we cannot work things out.

          4                 Having said that, I go back to my

          5  original mark. We're optimistic, and hopefully,

          6  working with representatives of the Mayor, we can

          7  work this out.  And I very much appreciate their

          8  coming today.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         10  Council Member McMahon for your efforts on this

         11  issue.  Thank you very much.  And again, we

         12  appreciate your time spent on this issue.

         13                 We do have a brief statement from

         14  Council Member Lanza.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you

         16  Chairman Addabbo, Chairman Monserrate.  I'm not a

         17  member of either one of these Committees, but I'm

         18  here to voice my support for this legislation. I

         19  want to thank Councilman McMahon for his leadership

         20  here.  I think it's important that we're here to

         21  support the members of the City employees,

         22  especially our uniformed services members.

         23                 You know, it's important that when we

         24  go out there and say that we support and appreciate

         25  the sacrifices that brave men and women in the
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          2  military are making on our behalf, to protect our

          3  freedoms that we enjoy here, that we mean it, and

          4  that we therefore back it up.  And I think that's

          5  what this legislation does.  It says that we're not

          6  only saying it, we're not only talking the talk, but

          7  we're going to walk the walk.

          8                 So this legislation will clearly

          9  right an injustice and demonstrate to the brave men

         10  and women of the uniformed services of our great

         11  City here, firefighters, police officers, that we

         12  mean it.  That we do appreciate what you do for this

         13  great City, and what you do for this great nation.

         14                 Now just one point of order,

         15  Chairmen, I have a bill that goes in a different

         16  direction that I would ask you to consider as well,

         17  that says that any uniformed employee of the City of

         18  New York that is deployed to a theater of combat,

         19  would not have to make any reimbursement to the City

         20  whatsoever.  That would in effect keep their

         21  salaries.

         22                 So the first step here is this great

         23  piece of legislation.  It's very important.  It's

         24  important because it's right.  It's important

         25  because it's justice.  And it's important because it
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          2  sends the right message.  And I would ask you to

          3  consider that legislation as well.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Councilman

          5  Lanza, thank you so much.  You know the number of

          6  your bill?  Please do.

          7                 And just a little bit of

          8  housekeeping.  I also want to, for the record, state

          9  that Council Member Gallagher, who was a co- prime

         10  sponsor on the original Reso. 399, should be

         11  included as a co- prime sponsor of 399A.  Which he

         12  was not included, so my apologies to Council Member

         13  Gallagher.

         14                 Just a brief note to thank those who

         15  have put this hearing together.  The Policy Analyst,

         16  Joan Pavolny, our Legal Counsel, to our right here,

         17  Harold Gates.  My Legislative Aide, Jeff Gally

         18  (phonetic).  And I want to thank the Sergeant- at

         19  Arms here for helping get this room in order.

         20                 Our first panel, ladies and

         21  gentlemen, we do have Commissioner Martha Hirst,

         22  from DCAS.  Commissioner thank you very much for

         23  being here.  Along with her is Lewis Finkleman, the

         24  First Deputy Commissioner and General Counsel for

         25  DCAS.  And Clarice Joynes  --

                                                            14

          1  VETERANS AND CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Executive

          4  Director of Veterans Affairs.  I want to thank very

          5  much for the Administration for participating, and

          6  again, working with the Council, and hopefully

          7  resolving some of the issues that appear today.  So

          8  Commissioner, thank you, and please state your

          9  testimony.

         10                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Thank you Mr.

         11  Chairman.  Good afternoon to you, Chairman

         12  Monserrate, Members of the Civil Service and Labor

         13  and Veterans Committees.  Other Council Members who

         14  are not Members of those Committees.  You've

         15  introduced my colleagues, Lou Finkleman and Clarice

         16  Joynes.  We're pleased for the opportunity to be

         17  here to discuss with you the Extended Military

         18  Benefits Package, created for New York City

         19  employees called up to serve in the military on

         20  response to the events of September 11th.          The

         21  City's Extended Military Benefits Package was first

         22  implemented by former Mayor Giuliani, just a month

         23  after the unprecedented September 11 attacks.  It

         24  was designed to ensure that City employees called up

         25  to active military service in Operation and During
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          2  Freedom would not suffer undue financial hardship,

          3  and that employees and their families would suffer

          4  no interruption in health care, pension, and other

          5  benefits, as a consequence of military service.

          6                 Mayor Bloomberg continued the program

          7  after coming into office, through Personnel Order

          8  2/1, and it was subsequently extended to all

          9  employees called up to serve in Operation Iraq

         10  Freedom.  The program remains in place today.

         11                 To fully appreciate the extent of the

         12  benefits provided, it's important to understand the

         13  benefits that the City, as a public employer, is

         14  obligated to provide to servicemen and women under

         15  New York State Military Law.

         16                 The State Military Law is designed,

         17  among other things, to protect public employees with

         18  respect to re- employment upon their return from

         19  military service.  However, it provides relatively

         20  modest benefits and protections, with respect to the

         21  continuation of an affected employee's City salary

         22  and benefits while they are on active military duty.

         23    Public employers are obligated to pay employees

         24  for the first 22 work days, or 30 calendar days of

         25  their military leave, whichever is greater.  Once
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          2  employees are paid for this time, State Law requires

          3  only that a public employer treat the employee as if

          4  he or she was on a leave of absence.  But the

          5  employer is not required to provide any additional

          6  salary, health care pension, or other benefits

          7  protection.  There is, for example, no obligation to

          8  continue health benefits beyond offering a variation

          9  on COBRA, a program that provides any employee who

         10  has left any employer's payroll, a limited

         11  opportunity to purchase health insurance at a cost

         12  slightly higher than the cost to the employer.

         13  Additionally, there is no mechanism for continued

         14  pension contributions while an employee is on

         15  military duty.  Nor does the employee continue to

         16  earn sick leave or annual leave.

         17                 The City created the Extended

         18  Military Benefits Package to supplement the State

         19  Military Law.  The Package provides much more

         20  comprehensive benefits to City employees called up

         21  to military service.  I should note that the City

         22  has consistently supplemented the benefits required

         23  under the State Law.  For example, we offered

         24  additional benefits to employees called up to serve

         25  in the 1990 Persian Gulf War, and in NATO operations
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          2  in Bosnia in 1996.  But our current package is more

          3  generous than any program we've previously offered.

          4  And in fact, our research shows that this program is

          5  among the most comprehensive in the entire nation,

          6  if not the most comprehensive.

          7                 The City's Extended Military Benefits

          8  Package essentially treats those called to military

          9  service as if they are still reporting for work

         10  every day, here in the City of New York. Eligible

         11  City employees must choose to participate by signing

         12  up before reporting for active military service.

         13  Those who choose to do so, remain on the agency's

         14  payroll, in active pay status, for as long as they

         15  remain in covered military service.  They receive

         16  their full City salaries.  They accrue annual leave

         17  and sick leave. They receive full health insurance

         18  benefits, and have welfare fund or pension

         19  contributions made on their behalf.  Thus,

         20  participating employees receive two salaries while

         21  they are on active duty, and all the other benefits

         22  I just described.

         23                 As a condition of participating in

         24  this program, City employees agree that upon

         25  returning to their City jobs after completing their
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          2  military service, they will repay, as you both noted

          3  in your opening remarks, the lesser of their

          4  military pay or City salary.  Let me explain this

          5  process in a bit more detail.

          6                 When a City employee is called up to

          7  service, he or she is provided with information by

          8  their agency regarding the Extended Military

          9  Benefits Package, that explains, among other things,

         10  the benefits the City program provides, and the

         11  employees obligation to repay the lesser of the

         12  military or City salary upon their return to City

         13  service.  The information provided includes a

         14  memorandum explaining repayment options, and a

         15  reimbursement agreement.  Employees who choose to

         16  participate are required to sign and have the

         17  agreement notarized, which commits the employee to

         18  repay the lesser of his or her military pay or City

         19  salary.  The agreement explains that for the

         20  purposes of such repayment, the City uses the

         21  widely- accepted definition of military pay as base

         22  pay plus allowances for food and housing.  According

         23  to our research, practically all of the

         24  jurisdictions with enhanced benefits packages,

         25  including the State of New York and the federal
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          2  government, use the same definition of military pay.

          3    I'll say more about that issue in a few moments.

          4                 While many other jurisdictions have

          5  enhanced benefits packages, our research indicates

          6  we're the only jurisdiction that gives our employees

          7  the option to remain in full, active pay status,

          8  with all employee benefits and deductions, including

          9  health insurance, pension, deferred compensation

         10  contributions, and negotiated pay increases.  And

         11  accrual of pensionable time, sick leave, and annual

         12  leave while on military duty.  So that for all

         13  intents and purposes, it is as if these servicemen

         14  and women were at work, earning their City salaries.

         15

         16                 Giving the employees the option  --

         17  and it is an option  --  to receive their entire

         18  salaries as if they were present at work, without

         19  having to pay the lesser amount until after they

         20  return, provides them and their families with many

         21  invaluable and uninterrupted benefits.  We are aware

         22  of no other jurisdiction as generous as us with

         23  respect to our employees.   Or certainly in

         24  connection with Enduring Freedom or Iraqi Freedom.

         25                 Since September 11, 2001,
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          2  approximately 720 City employees have been activated

          3  at least once for military duty. Virtually all of

          4  these employees, an estimated 95 percent, have

          5  elected to receive the Extended Military Benefits

          6  Package.  As you both noted, about 85 percent of the

          7  employees activated for military duty are in our

          8  uniformed agencies, that is the Police Department,

          9  the Fire Department, the Department of Corrections,

         10  the Department of Sanitation.  At this time today,

         11  326 City employees are currently serving military

         12  duty.

         13                 DCAS worked closely with the Office

         14  of Payroll Administration to develop flexible

         15  repayment options for returning servicemen and

         16  women, including one, immediate repayment in full;

         17  two, repayment through charges to annual leave

         18  balances; and three, repayment through payroll

         19  deductions over time.  There is, in fact, a fourth

         20  option, which is to use some mix of those first

         21  three in repaying.

         22                 Under the Mayoral Personnel Orders

         23  implementing the Package, it has been the

         24  responsibility of individual City agencies to

         25  administer the program, including repayment plans
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          2  for returning employees.  Due in part to this

          3  decentralized implementation, and to the fact that

          4  the program was never envisioned to last this long,

          5  it appears that in some cases, City agencies have

          6  not put in place a set of consistent procedures for

          7  reminding returning servicemen and women of their

          8  repayment obligations, and for setting up repayment

          9  plans.  In some cases, employees who took advantage

         10  of the Package have been back in their City jobs for

         11  quite some time, we understand.

         12                 To remedy this situation, the City is

         13  centralizing oversight of the administration of the

         14  Extended Military Benefits Package within DCAS.  At

         15  Mayor Bloomberg's direction, DCAS will standardize

         16  the program's information, notification, and

         17  repayment procedures, and agencies will now report

         18  to DCAS on their administration of the Package.  The

         19  centralization process has already begun.  All

         20  agencies have been notified of this change. And on

         21  Thursday, this Thursday, we're holding an initial

         22  meeting with the agency personnel, officers, and

         23  military desks of NYPD, FDNY, Sanitation and

         24  Correction, the four agencies that we noted with the

         25  largest number of affected employees. Within a few
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          2  weeks, we make sure that employees who have returned

          3  to City service and have not completed their

          4  repayment program, are reminded and fully aware of

          5  their obligations, and we will work with them and

          6  their agencies to set up flexible repayment plans.

          7                 It has come to our attention, based

          8  on our review and on concerns raised by returning

          9  servicemen and women and some elected officials,

         10  including a number of you who are here today, that

         11  there may be income tax complications for some City

         12  employees who returned from military service some

         13  time ago, but have not yet set up a repayment plan.

         14  To address this issue, Consumer Affairs Commissioner

         15  Jonathan Mintz and I are finalizing arrangements

         16  with H and R Block Chairman and CEO, Mark Ernst, and

         17  Jackson Hewitt Chairman and CEO, Michael Lister, for

         18  H and R Block and Jackson Hewitt to provide free tax

         19  consulting services to City employees who chose to

         20  take advantage of the Extended Military Benefits

         21  Package.  Jackson Hewitt and H and R Block will

         22  assist eligible veterans in maximizing their tax

         23  refunds, and recouping any excess taxes they may

         24  have paid while enrolled in the program.  In the

         25  near future, veterans enrolled in the program will
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          2  be able to receive pro bono tax advice at H and R

          3  Block branches, and Jackson Hewitt franchises across

          4  the New York metropolitan area.

          5                 We are also working to ensure that

          6  all activated employees considering enrollment in

          7  the program fully understand the structure and terms

          8  of the Package.  To that end, we are expanding and

          9  improving the information that is provided to

         10  participants in the program.  For example, we're

         11  developing a list of frequently asked questions that

         12  will be distributed and posted on nyc.gov.  We will

         13  of course, continue to work closely with my

         14  colleague, Executive Director Clarice Joynes, and

         15  the Office of Veterans Affairs in implementing these

         16  initiatives.

         17                 On the issue of what counts as

         18  military pay, for repayment purposes, as I mentioned

         19  earlier, practically every governmental entity we've

         20  looked at, include the food and housing allowance,

         21  if any, in the definition of military pay.  For as

         22  you know, not all servicemen and women receive those

         23  allowances. Nonetheless, we understand that there

         24  are some questions about the inclusion of food and

         25  housing allowance in the definition for repayment
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          2  purposes.  And we are looking closely at that issue.

          3

          4                 I'd like to thank you, and returning

          5  servicemen and women, for voicing their concerns

          6  about this issue, and bringing it expressly to our

          7  attention.

          8                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          9  address you both, and the Members of the Committees,

         10  and we're available to answer any questions you

         11  might have.

         12                 MS. JOYNES: Good afternoon everyone.

         13  Chairman Addabbo and Chairman Monserrate, and

         14  Members of the Committees.  My name is Clarice

         15  Joynes, and I serve as Executive Director of the

         16  Mayor's Office of Veterans Affairs.

         17                 After the attacks on the World Trade

         18  Center on September 11, 2001, an increased number of

         19  City employees enlisted in active military duty.  In

         20  response, on October 15, 2001, Mayor Rudolph

         21  Giuliani signed Personnel Order Number 2001/4,

         22  establishing and Extended Benefits Package for New

         23  York City employees serving in combat operations, or

         24  who were ordered to military duty in connection with

         25  the events of September 11th.  On October 14, 2002,
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          2  recognizing the continued need for such a package,

          3  Mayor Michael Bloomberg signed Personnel Order

          4  Number 2002/1, continuing the Extended Benefits

          5  Package.

          6                 The purpose of the Extended Benefits

          7  Package is to alleviate the financial hardships

          8  faced by City employees called to duty.  In many

          9  instances, a military service salary is far less

         10  than a City salary.  This voluntary Benefits Package

         11  entitles City employees to receive their City

         12  salary, including pay increases, accrued vacation

         13  and sick leave, maintain their Civil Service title,

         14  and provide medical benefits for employees and their

         15  families while deployed.  Without this benefit, many

         16  City employees would not be able to support their

         17  families and pay their bills while on military

         18  leave.

         19                 In the 1990s, during Persian Gulf

         20  One, the federal government began downsizing the use

         21  of active duty troops in favor of using the Reserve

         22  and National Guard during wartime.  City employees

         23  who participated in Persian Gulf One, and subsequent

         24  military operations in Bosnia, received a modest

         25  benefits package to offset their loss of income as a

                                                            26

          1  VETERANS AND CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  result of their military service.

          3                 After the attacks on the World Trade

          4  Center, and the start of the War on Terrorism, the

          5  reliance on the Reserves and National Guard

          6  increased.  Servicemen and women now serve

          7  approximately 18 months overseas in support of

          8  Operation Enduring Freedom and Operation Iraqi

          9  Freedom.  The Extended Benefits Program is a better

         10  program than those offered to City personnel in

         11  previous military conflicts, and continues to evolve

         12  to answer the needs of City employees.  Indeed, this

         13  program makes the City of New York a national leader

         14  in giving important benefits to our citizen

         15  soldiers, and recognizes the sacrifices made my our

         16  military personnel.

         17                 Since our City employees have been

         18  called up to serve in Operation Enduring Freedom and

         19  Operation Iraqi Freedom, I've heard from a number of

         20  returning servicemen and women that the benefits

         21  offered to them and their families through the

         22  Extended Benefits program greatly reduced the

         23  economic hardships that our soldiers might otherwise

         24  face.  Across the board, the feedback I've gotten

         25  indicates that the program is tremendously helpful,
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          2  and that City employees appreciate the level of

          3  support that the City has been able to provide.

          4                 The Office of Veterans' Affairs will

          5  work closely with DCAS to ensure that City employees

          6  who have returned from military service, and who

          7  choose to participate in the Extended Benefits

          8  program are aware of their repayment obligation, if

          9  they haven't begun making repayments already.  And

         10  that they get the assistance they need to set up a

         11  repayment plan that best suits their needs.

         12                 We will also continue to ensure that

         13  City employees who may be called up to military

         14  service are made aware of this important program and

         15  have the opportunity to participate.

         16                 We also look forward to working with

         17  DCAS and with the City Council, and with the Mayor

         18   --  we're going to be looking at this important

         19  benefits package, and we're here to answer any

         20  questions the Council may have.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         22  very much.  I'm going to go right into some

         23  questions.  Because I think it's important to note

         24  also, that unlike other jurisdictions, New York City

         25  is a very expensive place to live, and suburban
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          2  areas.  I think that even in the military, they make

          3  certain concessions for areas in the country that

          4  there's a higher cost of living.  And I think that

          5  those adjustments are made with respect to housing

          6  and food allowances.

          7                 It's interesting to me that the

          8  Administration  -- let me be clear that I don't

          9  concur with the Administration's position that the

         10  food and housing allowances should be considered as

         11  part of the military pay.  I don't concur with that.

         12

         13                 And my question is, you intend to

         14  continue to include the food and housing part, as

         15  part of their military salary?  Or is that something

         16  that's still being looked at?  Or possibly

         17  revisited?

         18                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We are absolutely

         19  taking a look at that issue.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay.  Thank

         21  you.

         22                 The next question I have is,

         23  approximately how much would it cost the City if it

         24  didn't include the food and housing into its

         25  calculations?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Mr. Chairman,

          3  that's difficult to know, which is one of the

          4  reasons why we're going to centralize the operation

          5  of this program.  Not only for individual people.

          6  It's a very individualized calculation.  Individual

          7  salaries, people's ranks are different.  People's

          8  tax circumstances are different.  Whether or not

          9  they got the food or housing allowance. All the

         10  factors that go into an individual's calculation of

         11  pay on the military side, of City pay, and their tax

         12  circumstances.  So it's very individualized, and we

         13  need to make some assumptions and do some

         14  calculations.

         15                 Also, this has not been a centralized

         16  program.  And it is an evolving program.  As we

         17  noted, we  --  I think the program was developed

         18  initially thinking it would be  --  that Operation

         19  Enduring Freedom would be a relatively short- term

         20  effort on the part of everybody.  And as we're all

         21  learning, that's not the case.  So it's evolving,

         22  and the answers, the questions, the dollar amounts

         23  are all more open ended.

         24                 So we're going to work on putting

         25  that information together.  I'm not able to tell you
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          2  a number today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: All right.

          4  Your testimony today, you outlined some figures as

          5  to currently who is eligible for the benefit

          6  package.

          7                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We outlined that

          8  there are 1,720 people who have taken advantage of

          9  the package, who have been called up for military

         10  duty since the beginning.  Now some may have been

         11  called up several times.  And currently, there are

         12  326 people in active military status.

         13                 We can tell you what agencies those

         14  folks work in here in the City of New York, but as

         15  to any individual person's tax status or military

         16  rank and status, we simply don't know that.  But one

         17  of the reasons the Mayor has asked us to pull

         18  together this program and operate it going forward

         19  as a centralized program, is to be able to have that

         20  information and provide, in the same time, uniform

         21  information to all of the people who are

         22  participating in the program.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And has the

         24  City taken any actions to try to collect  --  gone

         25  forward collection proceedings against any City
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          2  employees with respect to this package?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Collection

          4  proceedings, not to my knowledge.  Certainly, in

          5  agencies where there are individuals who have been

          6  called up, and who have returned to City service,

          7  depending on the agency they're in, most of those

          8  individuals have been contacted with a reminder by

          9  the agency, or in some instances, individual people

         10  who are aware of the obligation, or are aware of the

         11  agreement they signed, have come back to their

         12  agency with the appropriate paperwork.  So they've

         13  been in touch with one another. Has there been a

         14  collection effort that's been instituted of the sort

         15  that I think you're describing?  No.  Not to my

         16  knowledge.

         17                 And our hope is that we can give

         18  pause, and go forward from this point, and make sure

         19  that everybody in agencies, and most importantly,

         20  servicemen and women returning to service, have all

         21  the information and all the assistance they need

         22  going forward.  Whether they've already signed an

         23  agreement and need to make a repayment plan that

         24  works for them and their families, or are first

         25  being called up to service, and want to evaluate
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          2  whether or not this program is an option for them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And if God

          4  forbid, one of our service members who is also a

          5  City employee is killed in action, would the City

          6  attempt to garnish any death benefits  -- garnish

          7  any of these monies from their death benefits?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: That is such a

          9  regrettable thing to consider, as you said.  And in

         10  fact, I think we have two City members of the

         11  service who have passed away.  We need to look at

         12  that question.  Obviously, legally, lawyers in the

         13  room would tell us  --  lawyers in the room would

         14  tell us that the estates of those individuals would

         15  be legally obligated.  But we are going to take a

         16  look at that, among all the other issues here.

         17  Because it's a very important issue, and

         18  regrettably, the program is continuing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Perhaps  --

         20  you know, I think I can probably say this with  --

         21  perhaps that's something that should be immediately

         22  considered.  I mean, the City provide, either by

         23  Executive Order or through your agency, clearly

         24  defining that that should not be the case.  I mean,

         25  if we have members of the Armed Forces who are City
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          2  employees who are killed in the line of duty, that

          3  all those unresolved issues should be immediately

          4  waived.  That's my opinion, and a suggestion to the

          5  Administration.

          6                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And I have

          8  two or three more questions and then I'm going to

          9  allow my colleagues, who I know have many questions

         10  to ask.

         11                 Is the money that's going to be paid

         12  back to the City, is that money remain in the

         13  relevant City agency's budget? Or does it go back to

         14  the general fund?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: I believe with

         16  all recoupments, they go back to the general

         17  municipal fund.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And my last

         19  question is, how long after an employee returns from

         20  military service is he or she notified of the debt

         21  owed?

         22                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Well,

         23  regrettably, the answer is, it depends.  People are

         24  reminded in various ways, in different agencies, as

         25  I noted in my testimony, we have learned that the
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          2  procedures vary by agency.  And we need to

          3  standardize that.  We need to fix that so that there

          4  is a standard procedure.  Every agency has been

          5  working to do this.  But not every agency has done

          6  it in a uniform way and in a standard way.  So we

          7  are going to standardize that.  And it varies at the

          8  moment

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         10                 Thank you very much.  And we're going

         11  to call upon Council Member McMahon.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you Mr.

         13  Chairman. Commissioner, on that issue about the

         14  recollection.  I mean, you should know that I guess

         15  in May of this past year, I got a call from some

         16  friends and family friends on Staten Island to meet

         17  with a group of Reservists who have been home, some

         18  for four years, some for three years, some for two

         19  years.  And they had heard nothing about this

         20  repayment policy or what was going to happen for

         21  three or four years.  And they were all sitting

         22  together at a table, you know, looking at letters

         23  that said you now owe $200,000.  And virtually, you

         24  know, were close to tears.  You know, these are

         25  tough men who you know, wore the uniform in the City
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          2  and the uniform from the country.  And they were

          3  almost  --  they were getting letters like this.

          4                 So it's not that it's been sort of a

          5  haphazard approach.  I think it's been a very

          6  mismanaged approach in that regard.  So I'm glad to

          7  hear that you're centralizing the management of

          8  this.  But you have to know that it wasn't sort of -

          9    just sort of this kind of haphazard thing without

         10  implications. I mean, people were getting these

         11  letters feeling that their lives were ruined, and

         12  they were going to have to sell their house or take

         13  their kids out of college.  So the effects of this

         14  mismanagement were dramatic.

         15                 The second point is, you've indicated

         16  that you're going to take another look at the

         17  calculations for the housing allowance and the food

         18  allowance.  And I appreciate that.  In your

         19  testimony, you said that other jurisdictions all

         20  calculate that in. Our indication, from looking at

         21  places like Westchester, and the Port Authority, is

         22  they do not calculate into the calculation of what

         23  has to be paid back.  I make that point.  I add that

         24  to the point of the mismanagement of the collection.

         25    And ask you to have --  ask the Administration to
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          2  issue, at least at this point, a moratorium on

          3  collections and dunning letters, and scaring people,

          4  and making people think that they're going to lose

          5  their homes and take their kids out of college,

          6  until you centralize the system, and until you

          7  consider reducing the base, the housing allowance

          8  and the food allowance from what has to be

          9  collected.  Is that something that you could

         10  consider?

         11                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We'll certainly

         12  consider that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: How soon will

         14    --

         15                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: I just want to

         16  correct one point, Council Member McMahon.  We did

         17  say most jurisdictions.  We are aware that there are

         18  several that  --  you mentioned a couple. The State

         19  of Illinois.  There are a couple that we know of

         20  that do not use that calculation.  Food and housing

         21  allowance in the calculation.  Most do, is what I

         22  said.  Just to clarify that point.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: So there are

         24  some that don't.  So again  --

         25                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: There are a few
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          2  that don't.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But on behalf

          4  of these families, let me implore you to take the

          5  message back to the other side of City Hall to

          6  quickly address this issue by removing the base, the

          7  requirements that the housing and food allowance

          8  have to be paid back.  Just think about it.  A

          9  soldier who gets that call has to provide for a

         10  family here at home.  Has to provide for him or

         11  herself overseas.  And you know what?  We are the

         12  City of New York.  We were attacked.  We lost so

         13  many people.  We have so many heroic men and women

         14  in uniform.  And we should do  --  we should be the

         15  trend setter on this issue, and we should send a

         16  message across this country that every  --  you

         17  know, quite honestly, the federal government has

         18  dropped the balls in many ways that they treat the

         19  men and women in the Armed Services.  But New York

         20  City is not going to allow that to happen.  And I

         21  know that my colleagues at this table are willing to

         22  do whatever budget amendments have to be made,

         23  whatever sacrifices have to be made elsewhere to

         24  honor the sacrifice that was made by those who

         25  protect us every day, and went to war for us.
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          2                 So I don't want to turn up the

          3  rhetoric here, but I want you to know that this is

          4  something that I think for many of us, is a very

          5  visceral issue, and we feel very strongly that those

          6  allowances should be removed from the calculation.

          7  And again, until you  hopefully reach that decision,

          8  that everyone here gets a message that they are not

          9  going to lose their homes, their family is not going

         10  to be displaced, they're not going to lose their

         11  jobs, and that there will be a moratorium on any

         12  action taken.  And I look forward to hearing from

         13  you on that.

         14                 When the Extended Benefits Package

         15  was offered to the employees, were they given any

         16  counseling as to what they were signing?  Because

         17  I'll tell you the anecdotes that I've heard.

         18  Especially shortly after 9- 11, urgency was so great

         19  that soldiers were receiving  --  Reservists were

         20  receiving notices, you got to report in 48 hours.

         21  You've got to report in 72 hours.  And at that time,

         22  you know, they've got  --  they're worried about

         23  their health insurance, they're worried about their

         24  families.  And a lot of them said, you know, we went

         25  in, our main concern was keeping our health
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          2  insurance for our families back home.  So we kind of

          3  signed whatever we were told to sign, and didn't

          4  understand exactly what it was they were signing.

          5  In your opinion, do you think that the information

          6  that they were given was adequate?  So that they

          7  understood what they were getting into?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: I think the

          9  information was largely straight forward, but I did

         10  say that each agency presented materials in a

         11  slightly different fashion.  I also think, as you

         12  acknowledged, that it's a time when people are busy

         13  getting themselves together to move along, and are

         14  concerned about their families and so forth.  So

         15  irrespective of how straight forward the information

         16  is  --  and I believe it is  --  it expressly lays

         17  out the definition of military pay.  It's not buried

         18  in fine print, as was noted in one of our

         19  newspapers.  It's expressly there.  It is completely

         20  voluntary.  And it was designed to extend all the

         21  benefits you currently have as a City worker, going

         22  forward, for you and your family.

         23                 So I think it's simple and straight

         24  forward, and the information is such.  But that

         25  said, the circumstances are not so simple and
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          2  straight forward.  We understand and appreciate.

          3  Which is why we've been asked and will very quickly,

          4  working together with Executive Director Joynes, be

          5  sure that the program is as expressly straight

          6  forward and clear for people, and for agency

          7  personnel officers, as it can be.  So questions of

          8  the sort that you're raising, were people getting

          9  enough information, we can indisputably say, yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: So you

         11  acknowledge that it could have been better, and

         12  you'll take steps to make it as good as it can be.

         13  And we appreciate that.  But again, I hope that that

         14  also goes into your consideration when looking at

         15  the issue of how to calculate what monies are due

         16  and owing.  --

         17                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: There's also the

         18  additional point  --  I want to be sure everyone

         19  understands that the repayment options already

         20  exist, and that we'll be working on those with

         21  people too.  But the fact that no one is losing a

         22  job or a house, or anything.  And we want to be very

         23  reassuring of that point.  You can repay the money,

         24  if you have it, as some people do. They've saved one

         25  salary and they come back and pay.  You can take the
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          2  sick and annual leave that you've accrued over time

          3  and can partly be used to pay back.  You can pay

          4  back with payroll deductions over a very long period

          5  of time.  Or a combination of all those three.  So

          6  we're going to be able to work with people on

          7  repayment programs that are as flexible as we can

          8  make them, having allowed employees to continue the

          9  opportunity to be on the payroll, so that their

         10  pension benefits continued, their sick leave and

         11  annual leave accrued, and all the other benefits

         12  contributions that they were having made on their

         13  behalf, whatever they are, they vary by individual,

         14  continued.  That was the objective of the program.

         15  We need to strengthen it, perhaps.  And we will be

         16  taking the steps to do that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you

         18  Commissioner. But on the repayment side, how many of

         19  the members who served have since retired?  And what

         20  hardships do they face because they can no longer do

         21  payroll deductions and sick and annual leave

         22  deductions?

         23                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: There are some

         24  retirees.  I don't have the numbers with me today.

         25  But that is another area that we need to look at
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          2  closely, what the impact is on retirees. Obviously

          3   --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But you do

          5  understand, in their cases, the impact could be more

          6  severe, because they don't have the ability to kind

          7  of whittle down the amount that they owe through

          8  those normal avenues.

          9                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: One of the things

         10  I have learned is that the impact of this program is

         11  extremely individual.  If you are a retiree,

         12  depending on your rank in the military, depending on

         13  your length of service, depending on your length of

         14  City service, depending on your tax status, all

         15  those things make those circumstances very, very

         16  individual.  And yes, we're mindful that retirees in

         17  general may be in a different circumstance than

         18  other people.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: You indicated

         20    --  and we appreciate the compassion that you

         21  showed, in the instances where you have soldiers who

         22  are killed in the line of duty  --  that the City

         23  should certainly look to find a way to forgive any

         24  amount of money that is due.  We all endorse that.

         25  In your opinion, does the City have the legal
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          2  ability to forgive all monies due?  To all members

          3  who serve in the Armed Services?

          4                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: I'm not an

          5  attorney, Mr. McMahon.  And I can't speak to that

          6  issue legally.  It's an issue we have to look at,

          7  together with my Counsel and the Law Department.  I

          8  am very mindful of what you and Council Members

          9  Monserrate and Addabbo have said today about asking

         10  us to look into that aspect of the issue.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But certainly

         12  in those cases.  But what about in the case of all

         13  the Reservists?  The 1,800 that served.  Does the

         14  City have the legal ability to forgive everything

         15  that's owed?  Even the base salary?

         16                 MR. FINKELMAN: There is an issue out

         17  there regarding the New York  --  Lou Finkelman,

         18  from DCAS.

         19                 There is a legal issue there about

         20  whether or not to completely forgive that debt would

         21  run afoul to the State Constitution, which prohibits

         22  municipalities from giving gifts. And that's one

         23  issue we'd have to look at with the Law Department.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Well

         25  certainly, we urge you to look at that broader
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          2  picture as well, and we'll certainly look at it from

          3  our legal perspective as well.

          4                 On the tax side, the tax issue side.

          5  In your testimony, you spoke about having counseling

          6  with private entities. But at some point, there are

          7  going to be those who lost money either because of

          8  the time of the filing  --  for instance, if their

          9  filing comes in immediately after the year that they

         10  pay back, their income is less, so the deduction

         11  that they get is less. Is the City willing to give

         12  monetary credits to those members of the Reserves

         13  who actually lost money because of the tax

         14  implications that cannot be recouped because of

         15  refiling?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We have to look

         17  at all those issues.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Can you give

         19  us sort of a timeframe when we'll have answers to

         20  these questions?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Well, I'm looking

         22  at my watch, because we're already at work on this

         23  today, and we'll get back to work on it the minute

         24  we leave here.  But certainly in the next few weeks.

         25    We are working very, very quickly on this.  We
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          2  want to reassure people about this.  We want to be

          3  as clear as we can.  And our expectation is that in

          4  several weeks, we will be able to give you an update

          5  on the work we are doing to clarify this program as

          6   --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And are you

          8  giving your assurance to those who are assembled in

          9  this room and those who are listening, that until

         10  the adjustments to this policy are made, that no one

         11  has to worry about being served with process,

         12  receiving legal action, losing their jobs, losing

         13  their home, and that there will be no action taken

         14  until we can see how the Administration is going to

         15  respond to the issues of how base pay is calculated,

         16  how taxes have affected the workers here, how Social

         17  Security is an issue here, and retirement is

         18  certainly an issue here.  All of those myriad of

         19  issues.

         20                 I look in the faces of the men and

         21  women back here, and I see a lot of concern.  Can

         22  they leave here knowing that nothing will happen

         23  until we hear back from you?

         24                 MR. FINKELMAN: Yes, I just want to

         25  point out, there hasn't been one enforcement
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          2  proceeding sent over to the Law Department in the

          3  years since this package was offered.  And I think

          4  we're on pretty solid ground to say that won't

          5  happen until all these issues are discussed and

          6  resolved.  So hopefully, that will appease  --  you

          7  know, I mentioned gifts, and it struck a cord.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Sure.

          9                 MR. FINKELMAN: I don't write the

         10  laws, so I just want to say we'll certainly look at

         11  these.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: No, we  --

         13  but you know, it strikes a cord because they

         14  certainly don't think of this as a gift.  We don't

         15  think of it as a gift.  And I know you didn't mean

         16  that.  And I understand sometimes we speak in

         17  legalities, and it doesn't speak to the reality of

         18  the issue there.  But what I want to impress upon

         19  you is that this is not just an issue that we, as

         20  people who work in City government are dealing with

         21  you know, whether it's moving the Sanitation, or you

         22  know, the other issues that we deal with, or zoning,

         23  or whatever else we deal with.  This is an issue

         24  that people are going home every night, and their

         25  spouses are asking them you know, are we going to
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          2  lose our home today?  Do we have to move?  What's

          3  going to happen?  This is very, very  --  cuts to

          4  the quick, I think, of people's very existence. And

          5  especially because they wear the uniforms of the

          6  City of New York, and they've worn the uniform of

          7  our country.  Again, I implore you to understand

          8  that, and to act with the due haste that I know

          9  Commissioner, that you and Ms. Joynes, and you sir

         10  will put to it.  I thank you for coming today.  And

         11  I just hope that together, we will stand and give

         12  these men and women the answers that they deserve.

         13  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you

         15  Council Member McMahon.  Before I get to questions

         16  from Council Member Avella, just a couple of quick

         17  questions, Commissioner Hirst.  Again, in looking at

         18  your testimony,  --  and I don't like to compare New

         19  York City to any other large jurisdiction or large

         20  city, but since it's been done already, let's point

         21  out that the large jurisdictions and cities of

         22  Philadelphia and Los Angeles have actually just done

         23  away with collecting this debt collection.  So the

         24  bottom line is, there's jurisdictions out there that

         25  have taken it away.
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          2                 Let me also point  --  in your

          3  testimony  --  and again, I want to appreciate the

          4  Administration's efforts  --  you know, becoming the

          5  oversight agency  --  and I think it's the right

          6  place for DCAS to be  --  I am hopeful that we can

          7  go forward here, because I don't like to dwell upon

          8  the past, but the fact that the NYPD  --  and I

          9  don't mean to dwell upon the NYPD  --  but the fact

         10  that it took more than four years for certain NYPD

         11  personnel to get back the amount that's been

         12  calculated for their repayment, cannot be accepted.

         13  Obviously, for here and in the future.  So I'm glad

         14  that DCAS is going to be the oversight, so that this

         15  doesn't happen again.  I'm sure in your hands, it

         16  will not.  So again, we're thankful of that.

         17                 And I'm going to make one request, if

         18  I may.  Can we get a copy of the Extended Benefit

         19  Package agreement forwarded to the Committees?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Oh, absolutely.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Please.  Because

         22  that would give us some insight of what was signed

         23  and notarized by these City employees.  Also, did

         24  the Legal Department and Corporate Counsel make any

         25  position paper on this agreement at all?
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          2                 MR. FINKELMAN: None that I'm aware

          3  of.  I mean, it was kind of implemented in a quick

          4  fashion.  I mean, I haven't seen any written paper

          5  from the Law Department addressing any of these

          6  issues or the package itself.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So this thing

          8   --  there is no position prior to an employee

          9  signing this, that the City had a position in its

         10  liability or its responsibilities under this

         11  agreement?  There was nothing put out by Corporate

         12  Counsel?

         13                 MR. FINKELMAN: Not that I've seen,

         14  honestly.  I've got a pretty comprehensive file on

         15  it, and I haven't seen a  --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Department of

         17  Finance, did they come through with a tax

         18  ramification of this document?

         19                 MR. FINKELMAN: To the City itself?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes.  Did the

         21  Department of Finance issue a statement based on

         22  what these employees were signing, and what tax

         23  ramifications they may have?  No?

         24                 MR. FINKELMAN: No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I mean, that
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          2  might have been helpful, obviously, in addressing

          3  some of these issues.  But again, a copy of the

          4  agreement to these Committees would be helpful, and

          5  I appreciate it.

          6                 MR. FINKELMAN: Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

          8  Council Member Avella.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you Mr.

         10  Chairman. First of all, I want to congratulate my

         11  colleague, Council Member McMahon, for introducing

         12  this legislation.  I'm happy to be a sponsor along

         13  with him.

         14                 A couple of questions I have.  And my

         15  first comment is not meant to you, Commissioner, or

         16  the members of this panel personally.  But the

         17  question was brought up I think about  -- from

         18  Council Member Monserrate, that has a decision been

         19  made to waive repayment of those two servicemen who

         20  lost their lives?  The fact that we have not reached

         21  an agreement to do that is appalling. Is absolutely

         22  appalling.  The fact that we have New York City

         23  public service men and women fighting in Iraq and

         24  Afghanistan who have passed away, and we haven't

         25  made that decision right off the bat, that they

                                                            51

          1  VETERANS AND CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  don't have to repay, I think is disgraceful.

          3                 And again, it's not meant for you

          4  personally, but I cannot believe that somebody

          5  didn't make a decision immediately, gee, we're not

          6  going to send them a letter, let's waive it.  It's

          7  just amazing.  It is absolutely amazing to me.  And

          8  again, not against you personally, you're the ones

          9  that have been picked to try and resolve this

         10  problem.  But I have to say, it's appalling. It's

         11  disgraceful.

         12                 Now you mentioned that you don't have

         13  any sort of figures, you're trying to put together

         14  an analysis of all the different agencies in terms

         15  of the actual cost.  --

         16                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.  We had a

         17  range.  We did do some research that indicated a

         18  range several months ago, of anywhere between $4-

         19  and $18 million.  That's a wide range.  And it's too

         20  big a range on which to make a judgement that we

         21  come and consult with you about.  So we're going to

         22  take a harder look, a more particular look at the

         23  actual people involved in the program, and see how

         24  we could help make this  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: So now it's a
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          2  situation where they have to pay the lesser of their

          3  salaries, correct?

          4                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Whether it's

          6  their military pay or their City pay.

          7                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: So you're

          9  telling me the range could be $4- to $18 million for

         10  the City's contribution, in effect, for  the  --

         11                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: For the food and

         12  housing component.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Oh.  I'm

         14  talking about  -- okay.  What is the total amount?

         15  Can you estimate?  Could it be as much as $30

         16  million?

         17                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: We just don't

         18  know.  That's one of the reasons we need to

         19  centralize this program, because  --  if you recall,

         20  if I could just make this point.  You know, this

         21  program was developed several years ago, as people

         22  were being called up in urgency, as you all have

         23  acknowledged.  And the idea was to maximize the

         24  opportunity for people's lives to continue in these

         25  sort of bureaucratic ways, uninterrupted.  So that
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          2  pension contributions, sick leave and annual leave

          3  accrual, health benefits, all the things that we

          4  sort of take for granted as being routine aspects of

          5  what we get as part of our salary, could continue

          6  seamlessly.  Otherwise, you go off the payroll after

          7  the 22 days or 30 days, maybe you have the

          8  wherewithal to buy your health benefits yourself for

          9  a few months, and then that's it.  And you try to

         10  figure it out for your family.  You come back and

         11  start over as to pension contributions, you've

         12  accumulated no annual leave and sick leave, and so

         13  forth.

         14                 It was intended to allow for no

         15  disruption of those benefits to City employees.

         16  It's optional, and it was also the way it could

         17  work, that you could continue to be on the payroll,

         18  so no one was in the position of having to be, found

         19  to be double- dipping as some people call it.  That

         20  is receiving two salaries for only being able to do

         21  one job.

         22                 The City's notion was to maximize the

         23  flexibility for individual employees to do that.

         24  And this Mayor extended that program, taking a look

         25  at those benefit opportunities, and agreed that it
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          2  was in the best interest of people.  As we're

          3  learning about individual circumstances, and how

          4  varied they are, some people have expressed to

          5  Councilman McMahon, there's a $200,000 potential

          6  liability.  Others have come back and written a

          7  check. It varies very, very significantly across

          8  this population.

          9                 And our objective is to standardize

         10  it, and to make sure that each individual, including

         11  all the people behind us, and those who are maybe at

         12  work today and also concerned, but not able to be

         13  here in the room, understand what their

         14  responsibilities are and their rights are, and we

         15  understand what our responsibilities are.

         16                 And we're going to look again at all

         17  the issues you've raised.  The issue of the deaths

         18  is a very significant issue.  At the same time,

         19  there are legal questions.  Councilman McMahon is an

         20  attorney too, and raised a legal question, because

         21  he knows there is one as to what the City can do.

         22  We will do what we're able to do.  The affordability

         23  of this program will in part, depend on the Council,

         24  because you jointly, with the Mayor, make budget

         25  judgements.  And we will go forward in a
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          2  collaborative fashion to make sure that the program

          3  works as well as it can for the people who take

          4  advantage of it.  That was our objective. We're

          5  mindful that these are people who were called to  --

          6    been called to military service in addition to the

          7  public service they provide every day.  And some of

          8  them make supreme sacrifices, and we know it well.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I sympathize

         10  with what you're saying, but at the same time,  --

         11  and I've used this expression before  --  I have

         12  this big knot in my stomach that something's clearly

         13  not right here.  You mentioned how you know, these

         14  servicemen and women were called up immediately.

         15  And the Mayor had to take action.  And the Mayor did

         16  take action.  And I applaud him for that.  But how

         17  many months, how many years are we down the line and

         18  we're talking about this?  They went over to serve

         19  immediately. Yet we're dragging our feet in

         20  apparently resolving this issue.  We should be able

         21  to resolve this immediately, at least as a courtesy

         22  to them.  They didn't say to us, well wait a second,

         23  I got to work this thing out.  They went.  And we

         24  should be able to resolve this immediately.

         25                 I don't expect you to answer that.
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          2  That's more of a comment.

          3                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: I think I already

          4  have answered that question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Take that back

          6  to the Mayor. And I think the Mayor wants to do the

          7  right thing.  And I know you want to do the right

          8  thing.  But I don't  --  you know, we've been

          9  listening here to your responses, how you're going

         10  to look at this, you're going to look at that.  You

         11  should have been looking at this.  Maybe not you

         12  personally, but the Administration should have been

         13  looking at these issues from day one.  It's kind of

         14  late in the game, in my opinion, to say that, to

         15  come to the City Council and testify in that

         16  respect.

         17                 We really need to have an answer as

         18  to how much money we're talking about.  But I'll

         19  just conclude with the fact that Council Member

         20  Lanza, as soon as he introduces his legislation, I'm

         21  going to be a prime sponsor.  You mentioned the

         22  issue of double dipping.  Why not give them the two

         23  salaries? We're talking about an all- volunteer

         24  Army.  We want to create incentives for people to

         25  join the military.  They're putting up their lives
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          2  for us.  Give them the two salaries.  Thank you Mr.

          3  Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Tony, thank

          5  you very much. Any other Members have questions?

          6  Okay, I guess at this point, we'll  --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Just real

          8  quickly.  With the issue of Social Security,

          9  Commissioner, you understand that as some Members,

         10  as they  --  all right.  How will you  --  you have

         11  to make adjustments as people pay back, they've paid

         12  Social Security on the money that they've received

         13  already.  And that's also  -- is that something that

         14  you've considered?  And do you realize that that's a

         15  calculation that has to be looked at as well?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And the  --

         18  Jim, maybe you know this, or maybe the Veterans

         19  Affairs, Ms. Joynes, when someone's in the military,

         20  their military pay is taxed at which level of

         21  government?

         22                 MS. JOYNES: That's depending on the

         23  individual. They usually, depending on what state

         24  they come from, and if they're in the combat zone,

         25  they don't receive taxes on their  --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: If it's in a

          3  combat zone, they don't pay federal tax.

          4                 MS. JOYNES: On their basic pay.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And does New

          6  York tax them State and local?

          7                 MS. JOYNES: That, no.  Not as long as

          8   --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And the

         10  housing allowance and the food allowance, they are

         11  non- taxable, is that correct?

         12                 MS. JOYNES: Correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: On the

         14  federal and the local and the State level as well?

         15                 MS. JOYNES: Right.  There's no taxes

         16  on that additional benefit.  And again, as my

         17  colleague Commissioner Hirst has mentioned to

         18  everybody here, whether a veteran, you know, a

         19  military member actually receives housing allowance

         20  or a food allowance or a combat pay is germane to

         21  that individual service member.  So they all don't

         22  receive the same  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay.  And

         24  the  --  just also to consider Commissioner, there

         25  are many returned servicemen and women who are
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          2  already paying back, by taking deductions out of

          3  their checks already, who may be paying back more

          4  than they should, if  --  we all pray  --  that the

          5  Administration looks at this and realizes that there

          6  are significant adjustments that have to be made,

          7  and that those people would then be entitled to a

          8  credit back for the money they paid.  So those are

          9  the myriad of issues.  And again, on behalf of

         10  everyone here, urge you to deal with this as quickly

         11  as possible.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you.  I

         13  would like to say thank you for your testimony

         14  today.  I know that there was a lot of issues that

         15  were raised, and commending Council Member McMahon

         16  for introducing the resolution.  My counterpart

         17  Chairman Joe Addabbo.  And I believe that you will,

         18  in earnest, work with us to remedy this as quickly

         19  as possible, and I thank you in advance for that.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 COMMISSIONER HIRST: Thank you Council

         22  Member.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: We're going

         24  to move on to the next witnesses that are going to

         25  be presenting today.  I'm going to remind everyone
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          2  that there is a two- minute time limit, which we'll

          3  be adhering to, because there are a lot of folks who

          4  want to testify today.  So in anticipation of that,

          5  we're going to call up  --  Folks, folks.  We have

          6  to stay in order here in the room.  We're going to

          7  call up Mr. Rory Lancman.  And the next panel after

          8  Mr. Lancman will be Peter Gorman, Edward Mullins,

          9  and James Slevin.  UFA, SBA, and the Uniformed Fire

         10  Officers.  You're the very next panel.

         11                 MR. LANCMAN: Good afternoon Chairman

         12  Addabbo and Chairman Monserrate, and Members of the

         13  Committee.  Thank you very much for this opportunity

         14  to testify on this very important issue. And thank

         15  you for your willingness to go on the record in

         16  support of our City's workers who also served in our

         17  Armed Forces.

         18                 The root of the problems described

         19  today in the City's well- intentioned but flawed

         20  Extended Benefits Package, is the structuring of the

         21  program as a repayment program, rather than a

         22  concurrent payment program.  In other words, we

         23  wouldn't be in this mess if the City followed the

         24  State's example of paying its mobilized employees

         25  the difference between their military pay and their
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          2  civilian pay during the course of their deployment,

          3  rather than giving them a choice of all of their

          4  military pay, all of their civilian pay, or none of

          5  their civilian pay, requiring City employees to have

          6  a massive repayment obligation upon their return to

          7  City service.

          8                 The City has made several choices

          9  which have exacerbated the fundamental flaw of using

         10  a repayment program in the first place:

         11                 As mentioned earlier, the City is

         12  including in its calculations, the housing, food,

         13  and other allowances paid to service members, even

         14  though these allowances are paid because deployment

         15  creates additional housing, food, and other

         16  expenses.

         17                 Additionally, the City is demanding

         18  repayment of the gross pre- taxed amount of pay

         19  received by its employees, even though its employees

         20  only received the net, or after tax amount in actual

         21  pay.  In other words, the City is demanding that its

         22  employees pay back more money than they actually

         23  received.

         24                 And third, although City employees

         25  can stretch out their repayment, because they are
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          2  required to give no more than 10 percent of their

          3  monthly civilian salary towards repayment, those who

          4  retire from City service are required to pay back

          5  the entire amount they purportedly owe immediately,

          6  as are the families of those who die before

          7  repayment is complete.

          8                 Can I just summarize?  The City needs

          9  to do two things in my view.  Well first, of course,

         10  Councilman Lanza's suggestion that the City just

         11  forgive any repayment obligations is obviously, the

         12  best solution, and really the most appropriate one

         13  for the people who are serving us, both as City

         14  employees and as soldiers and service members.

         15                 But specifically, the City needs to

         16  adopt a concurrent payment system similar to the

         17  State's.  And that will remove entirely the issue of

         18  repayment upon return to service.

         19                 And in terms of making adjustments

         20  for the employees who are coming back under the

         21  current repayment system, the City obviously does

         22  need to adjust the calculation of military pay to

         23  exclude the special allowances for housing and for

         24  food and other allowances.  But it also needs to

         25  come up with a way for retired City employees to pay
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          2  back their obligation over time, similar to the way

          3  that current City employees are able to pay back

          4  over time.               And finally, the most

          5  obvious fix in the system needs to be the

          6  forgiveness of any of the debt that is owed by

          7  service members who die before repayment is

          8  complete.  That's in my view, the least that the

          9  City can do.  Obviously, these issues may be

         10  addressed by State legislation in January, but

         11  hopefully the City will come to a resolution that's

         12  fair and reasonable for the service members before

         13  then.  Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay.  Mr.

         15  Gorman, Mr. Mullin, and Mr. Slevin.  Please come on

         16  up.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Gentlemen, thank

         18  you for being here today.  Just please state your

         19  name for the record, and give your testimony please.

         20                 MR. MULLINS: Ed Mullins, President of

         21  New York City's Sergeant Benevolent Association.

         22  With me is my Vice President, Bob Ganley (phonetic),

         23  from the New York City Sergeant's Benevolent

         24  Association.

         25                 MR. GORMAN: Pete Gorman, representing
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          2  the Uniformed Fire Officers Association.

          3                 MR. SLEVIN: James Slevin,

          4  representing the Uniformed Firefighters Association.

          5                 Thank you.  Good afternoon Chairman

          6  Addabbo, Chairman Monserrate, and Members of the

          7  Council.  I'd like to thank you for the opportunity

          8  to testify here today on behalf of my members.  The

          9  UFA strongly supports Resolution 399, calling upon

         10  the Administration to stop counting military

         11  stipends as income. This is simply unfair to our

         12  members that serve in the armed forces, protecting

         13  both this great City and this great nation.

         14                 Most members of the UFA need to

         15  supplement their income while they're working as

         16  firefighters in order to support their families.

         17  This is accomplished by working overtime, and more

         18  often, by working a second or third job.  When a

         19  member is called to active duty, they are grateful

         20  that the City continues to pay their salary, and

         21  also continues to provide health benefits for their

         22  families.  Unfortunately, by including the stipends

         23  for housing and food in the calculation for the

         24  salary that they must return, this is grossly

         25  unjust.  Our members simply can't afford to pay it
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          2  back.  They still have to provide for their

          3  families, with housing and food while they are

          4  serving overseas.  The UFA believes that we must go

          5  one step further.  And as was mentioned here

          6  earlier, and which we're happy to hear, we believe

          7  that each member should be provided with fully paid

          8  leave when they are activated.

          9                 The undue burdens and hardships that

         10  are imposed on our members that serve in the

         11  military when they are activated should be remedied

         12  by the Administration.  It would be a small cost to

         13  the City for some of its best employees.   We

         14  believe their sacrifices are already above and

         15  beyond the call of duty, and they should not be

         16  forced to make any others.

         17                 Thank you again for the opportunity

         18  to testify here today.  I'd be happy to answer any

         19  questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         21  Please continue.

         22                 MR. GORMAN: Thank you.  My name is

         23  Pete Gorman. Chairman Addabbo and Chairman

         24  Monserrate, Members of the Committee, thank you for

         25  allowing me the opportunity to appear before you
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          2  today.  I represent the Fire Officers of the City of

          3  New York. I'll be very brief since I think we have

          4  pretty much the same thing to say.

          5                 But following the attacks of

          6  September 11, 2001, an attack on this nation, by the

          7  way, whose first victims and first soldiers were

          8  police officers and fire fighters of this City, who

          9  continue to serve our country valiantly and

         10  courageously, along with other City workers as well.

         11    And I want to stress that what the City did after

         12  9- 11, what Mayor Giuliani did, and then what Mayor

         13  Bloomberg did, was the right thing to do.  But

         14  today, we have to look at it in terms of September

         15  25, 2005 (sic).  Five years have passed since that

         16  directive was issued.  And although it was issued

         17  with the best of intentions, it needs revision.  No

         18  one expected this operation to last five years.

         19  World War II didn't last as long.

         20                 I currently have a member in my union

         21  who has just been activated for his third tour of

         22  duty.  And I'll stand corrected.  Second tour, in

         23  Operation Enduring Freedom, this is his fifth time

         24  he's been activated since Desert Storm Warning.  And

         25  I have a list of just my members alone, not counting
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          2  firefighters. Most of them have been called up more

          3  than once already.  That gives you to scope of the

          4  problem that we have here.

          5                 Our current military operation relies

          6  heavily on commitments from Reservists and the

          7  National Guard.  FDNY members and all City employees

          8  who both served and will continue to serve our

          9  nation must leave their families to fight for our

         10  freedom. While our servicemen and women are away,

         11  rent, mortgages, food, clothing, and education

         12  expenses must be paid for the families left behind,

         13  while our Reservists incur other expenses while away

         14  from their homes and families.

         15                 There is an additional financial

         16  burden placed on many City employees, and certainly

         17  firefighters and police officers fall into that

         18  category when they are activated.  Overtime and

         19  shift differential are a significant part of their

         20  compensation. That's just a fact.  That members use

         21  overtime not to bank for college education, but to

         22  pay rent and to pay mortgages.  The money is lost

         23  while they are on active military duty.  In effect,

         24  City employees lose income for their families while

         25  risking their lives to protect our freedom.
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          2                 I'll wrap up in 30 seconds if you

          3  just can give me a second.  Indulge me a second.

          4                 It seems logical and plain commons

          5  sense to exclude payments for food and housing from

          6  the amount of money that our returning heroes must

          7  pay.  And when a member are paid by the military,

          8  they receive a W- 2 and must pay taxes, FICA et

          9  cetera. And it was pointed out in the Times this

         10  weekend, by a tax accountant in Manhattan, Mr.

         11  Guidelle (phonetic), who said there are many

         12  ramifications about medicare, about the FICA

         13  deductions that might not be able to be recouped.

         14                 But I do believe that Mayor Bloomberg

         15  and DCAS are willing to take a look at this issue.

         16  It is time right now, as our elected leaders, to

         17  take a common sense approach to this.

         18                 I'm going to go beyond excluding

         19  housing and clothing and meals.  Let's  --  I agree

         20  with Councilman Lanza. It's time to forgive the

         21  debt.  It's not even forgiving a debt.  I mean, we

         22  owe these members a debt.  It's not the other way

         23  around. I did my own calculations, and 1,700

         24  servicemen and women in the City, even at $100,000 a

         25  piece, rough calculations, that's $170 million.  And
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          2  the City has a $5 billion surplus.  I have many

          3  needs for my members.   As the Sergeants next to me,

          4  and the Firefighters Union.  What could be more

          5  important than repaying a debt to the men and women

          6  that are risking their lives to protect our freedom?

          7                 Firefighter Christian Engledrum and

          8  Police Officer McNaughton paid the ultimate

          9  sacrifice defending our freedom.  We own it to their

         10  families and to every returning veteran to come to a

         11  resolution of this issue.  We fully support

         12  Resolution 399A, and believe not just the uniformed

         13  force employees, but also the employees should not

         14  have to repay this money.  Thank you.

         15                 MR. MULLINS: Good afternoon.  I'm Ed

         16  Mullins.  I'm President of the New York Police

         17  Sergeants.  And I'd like to thank the Council for

         18  allowing me to speak, and particularly Councilman

         19  McMahon for addressing this issue and putting it

         20  before everyone.

         21                 We all know that this is a problem,

         22  and it surfaced itself within the last five years.

         23  As you've heard earlier, you've heard my colleagues

         24  also say that our members, other members of the City

         25  were called upon, really at a moment's notice, to
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          2  serve.  And in the midst of doing that, we're asked

          3  to sign lots of different types of forms and

          4  paperwork, making decisions, in some cases, create

          5  great hardship upon them and their families.

          6                 It's easy to say that you know, they

          7  were given forms and they were easily recognizable,

          8  but we all know, that in a time of crisis, you need

          9  to sit back and really take a look at things, and

         10  make proper decisions.  So the time factor that they

         11  had to address this particular situation, may not

         12  necessarily have been enough for them to make a

         13  decision that was going to be beneficial for them

         14  and their families.

         15                 The truth of it is that there were

         16  several, probably many members that never even

         17  signed the forms that were required, that were

         18  activated, sent overseas, and left to address the

         19  issue when they came back.  What's sad about the

         20  whole situation is in the Police Department, our

         21  form indicates a 30- day repayment.  Five years

         22  later, shortly after the Mayor's reelection, this

         23  comes out. It's wrong.

         24                 To clarify a few points, and I know

         25  that there's some sensitivity to the word "gift", I
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          2  don't look at this as a gift.  I don't know if any

          3  of our members that served anybody in the military,

          4  whether they're City workers or not, as a gift.  The

          5  only term gift that should be used here is the gift

          6  of freedom, which we have.  Without it, we wouldn't

          7  be able to have these hearings.

          8                 The problem needs to be addressed.

          9  We totally support the resolution.  We thank you for

         10  it.  And we firmly believe that there should be no

         11  collection of this debt at all.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         13                 I just wanted to have one question,

         14  and just an acknowledgment for Peter.  You brought

         15  up a great point about the issue of loss of

         16  overtime, which should not be calculated as wages,

         17  but in today's real world, with uniformed employees,

         18  it's part of what we expect to be able to pay our

         19  bills.  And I think that was a point that I would

         20  have like to have raised with the Commissioner when

         21  she was here, and we will make sure that we raise

         22  that point with her.  So thank you for that input.

         23                 And I have a question for of the

         24  labor organization that are here today.  Were any of

         25  you contacted when the City was contemplating this
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          2  benefits package and how to best approach it? Or how

          3  it would impact your members?  May I ask for you to

          4  have any input from any of you?

          5                 MR. GORMAN: I just recall after 2001,

          6  that as Commissioner Hirst said, normally it was 30

          7  days paid military leave, or 22  --  30 calendar

          8  days or 22 paid days.  And Mayor Giuliani not come

          9  out with that resolution then, after 30 days, our

         10  military that were called up would have nothing.  So

         11  at that time, it was the right thing to do.  I don't

         12  want to discount that or forget that.  It was the

         13  right thing to do.  But again, that was in 2001.  I

         14  did know about that.  It was the right thing to do,

         15  but here we are, five years later, and people are

         16  being called for their second and third tours of

         17  duty.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Actually, my

         19  question is post- Giuliani.  When the Bloomberg

         20  Administration took over since 2002 in January, were

         21  there any other conversations with any of you

         22  regarding this benefits packages and the impact or

         23  the implicit impact it could have on your members?

         24                 MR. GORMAN: Not with me, no.

         25                 MR. MULLINS: Not with me either.
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          2                 MR. SLEVIN: There was a couple of

          3  inquiries about two years ago and whether or not

          4  they should sign on to this package.  And at the

          5  time, it was the best answer for them to sign on for

          6  the package, so we did tell some members to take the

          7  package, and hopefully, we can deal with it down the

          8  road.  And I guess we're dealing with it now down

          9  the road.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: But not to

         11  the SBA or the --

         12                 MR. MULLINS: No one from the City has

         13  ever contacted us from the Labor Commissioner's

         14  Office, anything regarding this package.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay.  And

         16  when you said you were contacted, what agency

         17  contacted you?

         18                 MR. SLEVIN: I'm sorry.  Not by any

         19  agency.  By some of our members.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Oh no, no,

         21  no.  I'm talking about specifically the

         22  Administration.  Was the Administration keeping you

         23  in the loop, asking for your input, involving you in

         24  the process?

         25                 MR. GORMAN: Not at all.

                                                            74

          1  VETERANS AND CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay.  Thank

          3  you.  Any questions from my colleagues?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Just to follow

          5  up on Council Member Monserrate's line of

          6  questioning.  So that was regarding obviously, did

          7  the Administration reach out to you.  To your point,

          8  Mr. Slevin, when your members started reaching out,

          9  when did your members start reaching out to you and

         10  saying, hey, I signed this agreement, and I'm not

         11  sure it's the right thing to do.  Or that they had

         12  problems with it.  When were you first contacted by

         13  your membership?

         14                 MR. SLEVIN: Like I said,

         15  approximately two years ago, we started getting some

         16  inquiries.  And at the time, we tried to find out a

         17  more suitable resolution for them from the Fire

         18  Department, but there was nothing there, and they

         19  had also not started to collect  --  tried to recoup

         20  any of the salaries that they paid out, so we were

         21  continuing to recommend to our members to sign on to

         22  this package for now.

         23                 MR. GORMAN: Members knew about it

         24  when they sign on to the package, and I guess we

         25  have to question what they really knew when they
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          2  sign.  Our first contact with it was when the

          3  letters were sent out to the people who served, and

          4  they contacted us with you know, a complaint about a

          5  big bill that they were receiving.  And I say that

          6  that was sometime back around a year ago.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Yes, if you

          8  guys could help me on just two issues.  When the

          9  members that you knew were signing up way back

         10  Peter, back in 2001, 2002, was anyone ever talking

         11  about the issue of calculating the housing and food

         12  allowance into it as an issue?  Did anybody bring

         13  that up?  Was that something that was talked about?

         14  Or was it, as I assumed, people were rushing out

         15  signing papers, and just hoping for the best when

         16  they got back?

         17                 MR. GORMAN: No, that issue was never

         18  raised.  I believed everybody that signed up for it,

         19  it was their understanding that it was going to be

         20  based on strictly salary.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: On base

         22  salary.  And one area  --  and you guys, as the

         23  Chairman said, raised a good point to us, and maybe

         24  you could help us with these numbers.  You know,

         25  looking at an average police officer's or a
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          2  sergeant's or a firefighter or fire officer's

          3  salary, maybe now, anecdotally and then follow up,

          4  with base salary, you know, on the average, how much

          5  overtime is added to that, would you say?  Can you

          6  give me a ballpark figure?  Is that something  --

          7  Because  --

          8                 MR. GORMAN: I mean, it could be 25-

          9  30 percent of salary or more.  Night shift

         10  differential adds another 10 percent between the

         11  hours of four and nine for police officers.  Ours is

         12  rounded in.  But you know, more importantly than

         13  that, maybe one point, Chairman Monserrate, I make

         14  one more other point.  As union officials, you see

         15  us in suits.  This is what firefighters look like.

         16  And both police officers.  And what they do is, most

         17  police officers and firefighters live paycheck to

         18  paycheck on three jobs, usually.  A husband, a wife,

         19  and a second job.  When that person goes to the

         20  military, usually their wives can't work.  That's

         21  one lost income.  They don't work a side job.

         22  That's lost income. They don't lost overtime.

         23  That's lost income. That's a triple whammy.  And no

         24  one's  --  the IRS can't calculate that, but the

         25  people behind me know what that's about.  Christian
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          2  Engledrum knew what that was about.  And that's the

          3  issue that we're facing right now.  Our guys are

          4  hurting deeply just for serving in the military,

          5  even if they keep the money, and now their facing

          6  bills of $100,000 and $200,000.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I think

          8  that's exactly the point that you're helping us to

          9  make, because when we look at this issue, and say

         10  wait a second, they shouldn't have to pay back

         11  anything, because it's really just making them whole

         12  as to the overtime they lost, right?  If a

         13  firefighter is making $50,000 a year, and your

         14  military pays $25- or $30,000, that's basically the

         15  overtime that you lost.  Right?  Is that  --  So

         16  that helps us with --  not even.  But that  --

         17  Okay, so you help us with that argument, and we will

         18  bring that back to DCAS.

         19                 Just one other question.  Do you know

         20  of any servicemen who came from your unions who came

         21  back disabled, and are unable to work now?  And do

         22  you know how they are affected by this?  I meant to

         23  ask the Commissioner that and we didn't get to it.

         24                 MR. GORMAN: When Firefighter

         25  Engledrum was killed in action serving in Iraq, we
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          2  had another firefighter that was serving with him,

          3  both members of the I believe Fighting 69th.  And he

          4  was disabled for an extended period of time.  But

          5  has subsequently returned to work.  That was

          6  Firefighter Swift.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: I think

          8  that's an issue that we have to bring to  --  that's

          9  another one that DCAS has to look at as we address

         10  this, in the case of disabilities, how that's

         11  affected as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         13  very much Council Member McMahon.  Thanks to the

         14  members of the panel for your testimony today.

         15                 We're going to go ahead and call up

         16  the next panel. As we said, we have a lot of

         17  witnesses who want to testify today. And a reminder,

         18  we're limited to two minutes of testimony.  We're

         19  going to call up in panels of four.  We're going to

         20  start with Ronny Diz, American Legion NYPD Post 460.

         21    Henry  --  excuse me if I mispronounce Henry C.

         22  Stucker, from Post 460 also.  Detective Bedell Toro,

         23  from the Police Post.  PO Vincent, from the Police

         24  Post.  David Goodman, from Post 460.  You're all

         25  from the same group, same Police Post?  Is he here?
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          2  Okay.  Yup.  Oh, he's here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I just want to

          4  thank all  -- even if you're not testifying today,

          5  I'd like to thank you all for being here for showing

          6  support on this very important issue.  I also want

          7  to mention that the Mayor's Administration did not

          8  leave. They are here in the room still, to hear your

          9  testimony.  So again, I want to thank the

         10  Administration for being here and remaining here,

         11  but it's important that they are here to hear the

         12  testimony. So again, I just want to acknowledge

         13  that.  Gentlemen, thank you for being here.  Just

         14  please state your name and give your testimony

         15  please.

         16                 DETECTIVE TORO: Yes.  Good afternoon.

         17    My name is Detective Bedell Toro, New York City

         18  Police Department.

         19                 DETECTIVE GOODMAN: Detective David

         20  Goodman, New York City Police Department.

         21                 MR. STUCKER: Officer Stucker, New

         22  York City Police Department.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay.  Let me

         24    --  Are you all testifying individually?  Or is

         25  someone testifying on behalf of the Post?
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          2                 DETECTIVE TORO: We'll be testifying

          3  individually.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Okay, so then

          5  proceed please.

          6                 DETECTIVE TORO: Okay, yes.  I want to

          7  thank you for the opportunity to hear what I have to

          8  say about this matter.  I'm a retired Master

          9  Sergeant, United States Marine Corps, 22 years of

         10  service.  When the nation calls, I step up to the

         11  plate.  After September 11th, the City was attacked,

         12  and as a Detective, my job, being in the  --

         13  serving in the Marine Corps, Military Intelligence

         14  to track down those killer, that hurt our citizens.

         15  Somehow, the Mayor's Office is forgetting that, that

         16  as members of the service, our Police Department,

         17  those put on the military uniform, went overseas to

         18  track down these killers, somehow, we're not getting

         19  the thanks for that.  Other than a bill.  That's all

         20  we're getting.  That's the kind of thanks we're

         21  getting from the City of New York.

         22                 Mr. Monserrate, I know you asked the

         23  young lady from the Mayor's Office, in case of

         24  death.  This is my letter I received on June of

         25  2006.  It states in one of the paragraphs, okay?  In
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          2  the event of my employment with the Police

          3  Department ends due to my termination, retirement,

          4  or death,  --  here's the key word, death. I

          5  understand if I'm fired, I owe the City of New York

          6  the money. I'm not disputing that.  But here's the

          7  key word, death, okay?  I, or my estate, will  --

          8  meaning my estate, wife and children, that's what I

          9  mean by estate, wife and children  --  will be

         10  responsible for repaying the balance due to the  --

         11  That's the thanks that my wife and children get from

         12  the City of New York for her sacrificing her husband

         13  for one year.

         14                 Right now, upon returning, I retired

         15  from the Marine Corps, okay?  This $35,000.  I got

         16  to pay the money.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Let me ask.

         18  Are you still an active member of the Department?

         19                 DETECTIVE TORO: Yes sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Would you  --

         21    is that a letter that they sent to you?

         22                 DETECTIVE TORO: That's correct sir.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: And who is it

         24  signed by? Who sent you the letter?  The Department?

         25

                                                            82

          1  VETERANS AND CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 DETECTIVE TORO: Catherine Monterolli

          3  (phonetic), Deputy Director.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Of the

          5  Department?  NYPD?

          6                 DETECTIVE TORO: NYPD.  Yes sir.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: All right.

          8  Would you let us make a copy of that?

          9                 DETECTIVE TORO: Yes sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Sergeant- At-

         11  Arms.  Would you make us a copy of that please?

         12  Thank you.

         13                 DETECTIVE TORO: All right, number

         14  three.  In depth.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         16  We're going to make a copy of it for our record.

         17  Thanks.  But you did your testimony.  W are going to

         18  go on with the next one.

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Council

         20  Members, thank you for the opportunity to address

         21  this body regarding the financial nightmare that the

         22  Extended Benefits Package has created for our

         23  citizen soldiers employed by New York City.  I'd

         24  like to thank Councilman Addabbo for helping to

         25  bring this issue to the Council's attention.  I'd
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          2  also like to thank Councilman McMahon for offering

          3  Resolution 399A.

          4                 As part of American Legion Post 460,

          5  we strongly support the passage of this resolution.

          6  It is an important first step to correct the pending

          7  financial ruin that New York City is inflicting on

          8  its returning citizen soldiers.

          9                 There's much more that needs to be

         10  done if you mean to carry out the intent of

         11  protecting City employees from the financial

         12  hardship that comes from being mobilized for wartime

         13  service.  Days after the terrorist attack of

         14  September 11, 2001, former Mayor Giuliani signed

         15  this Extended Benefit Package.  This City, more than

         16  any other in the country, knew we were at war.

         17                 The Package sought to protect the

         18  City citizen soldiers from the financial hardship

         19  that they would suffer from being mobilized, and

         20  that they did suffer during the first Gulf War.

         21                 Reservists returning have been told

         22  for years, don't worry about it.  The City will

         23  never collect.  Don't worry about it.  Nobody knows

         24  how to collect this.  Perhaps that was the unspoken

         25  intent.  But as the war continues, and more and more
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          2  City employees have left for longer and longer, the

          3  cost to the City for its benevolence continues to

          4  grow.

          5                 I returned in May from my third

          6  mobilization since September 11th.  In June, I

          7  received three bills from New York City for my

          8  wartime service.  The bills totalled $126,000.  And

          9  between them, they asked for a third of my salary.

         10  But of course, the letter did begin with, Thank you

         11  for your service to your country.            The

         12  letter went on to tell me I would not retire until I

         13  paid this debt.  If I died before this debt was

         14  paid, the City would send a bill for the unpaid

         15  balance to my family.  I'm curious who would deliver

         16  that bill at my funeral.

         17                 This benefit package has driven

         18  soldiers out of the Reserves.  I have had former

         19  Reservists tell me they had to leave the military

         20  because they could not afford another deployment

         21  under this benefit package, with the cost associated

         22  with it.  Arguments about how much money the City

         23  can get from its Reservists does not seem to follow

         24  the intent to protect those same Reservists.

         25                 These are the men and women who
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          2  responded to the attacks of September 11th, and in

          3  the days, weeks, and months that followed, we laid

          4  down our tools and City careers, put on our military

          5  uniforms, picked up our rifles, and went to war to

          6  defend not only this City, but our nation as well.

          7  I now ask for your help to stop penalizing

          8  Reservists for serving their country.  I don't

          9  believe Reservists should be asked for a dime for

         10  serving their country in wartime.

         11                 You have to decide for yourselves

         12  what Reservists deserve for their service to this

         13  City and this country.  Approve Resolution 399.  Ask

         14  the Mayor to immediately stop the City's collection

         15  efforts for Reservists until everyone can put some

         16  actual thought into what's fair for Reservists.

         17                 On Thursday, I received my notice for

         18  a second time from the City, telling me I had 15

         19  days to make an agreement or face legal proceedings.

         20    You have waited five years to ask for this money,

         21  New York City.  A little time to decide on a real

         22  solution won't wipe out the billion dollar surplus

         23  in this City.  Enact legislation to correct the

         24  financial problems caused by five years of City

         25  inaction, and work with us in the City unions to
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          2  revise the Extended Benefit Package to reflect the

          3  reality of the long war that is before us, and the

          4  continuing role that Reservists will pay in that

          5  war.

          6                 Thank you for allowing me to testify

          7  today.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you.

          9  Next.

         10                 MR. STUCKEN: Henry Stucken.  This

         11  will be short and sweet.  I just received my letter

         12  on Thursday.  And it's my second deployment since 9-

         13  11.  My last deployment, I just came back in May.  I

         14  received my letter, like I said last Thursday, and

         15  according to the letter, as I stated before, upon

         16  leaving the Department or death, you will have this

         17  letter paid upon.  My debt right now is about

         18  $120,000, and I have about five years left in this

         19  Department.  The mortgage on my house, I have 30

         20  years to pay, and I have $112,000  --  $120,000 to

         21  pay within five years of leaving this Department.

         22  It's not going to happen.  It's right now, like you

         23  said, it's worries on the family, it's putting

         24  pressure on my wife, as well as things are not the

         25  same around with the kids, knowing that the peer
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          2  pressure of them collecting this money.  They did

          3  have five years to resolve this.  And now, five

          4  years later, getting a dead letter of this money.

          5                 One of the issues I'd like to state

          6  on that's been asked and I don't think anybody

          7  really   --  nobody answered it, was the counseling

          8  before we're leaving.  Basically, when we do receive

          9  our orders and report to the Military Extended Leave

         10  Desk, it's basically leave it, or take it all.  And

         11  as far as a family, I have two kids.  My kids come

         12  first, no matter what.  And as far as medical care,

         13  as far as military, anybody can speak upon, it's not

         14  the greatest when you're living in New York City.

         15  You have to travel to one of the nearby bases or one

         16  of the bigger bases to get your proper medical care.

         17    So my kids came first before anything.           Basically

         18  , just that I try and hopefully City Council can

         19  back us and get the right thing done for all of us.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you

         22  very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I've got a

         24  question.

         25                 No gentlemen, one second.  Because I
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          2  want to thank you for being here, as well as the

          3  other panels.  Again, you're putting a face to the

          4  problem here.  Now I just got a question.  I mean,

          5  on September 14th, the Labor Committee did a hearing

          6  on First Responders and the ill affects of the First

          7  Responders and how they are feeling.  Just by a show

          8  of hands, I know we got around 55 or so members

          9  here, how many, by a show of hands, are First

         10  Responders at 9- 11?  Let the record  -- yes, thank

         11  you very much.  Let the record reflect, of the 55,

         12  basically everybody raised hands.  So now, you were

         13  asked to first respond that day, and I know we have

         14  issues regarding your health matters, and obviously,

         15  we're trying to address that.  But now you have this

         16  second issue.  You're getting hit a second time with

         17  a second issue regarding your return home from

         18  serving not only our City but our country.  That is

         19  unheard of.  And that cannot be tolerated.  So

         20  again, I thank you for being here, and I thank you

         21  for the efforts you make for our City and for our

         22  country.  Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         24  We're going to hear now from Wilton Sekzer, Zak

         25  Michael, Amy Maniscalco, Amy?  And Alison
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          2  Richardson.

          3                 Okay.  So we'll begin this way, and

          4  across.  Okay, that's fine too.   Go right ahead.

          5  State your name, the organization you represent, or

          6  yourself.  Whatever the case is.

          7                 MS. RICHARDSON:  Police Officer

          8  Richardson.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Go right

         10  ahead with your testimony.

         11                 MS. RICHARDSON: I came here today to

         12  speak to you in regards to the ordered military duty

         13  with paid reimbursement.  On behalf of myself and my

         14  fellow officers, guardsmen and women I have served

         15  for besides 24 years, I ask that you hear me today,

         16  and not just listen about hi.  And many will explain

         17  how this unjust operation during Iraqi Freedom

         18  Extended Benefits Package.  This was a series of

         19  paper forced upon us to sign before being deployed

         20  out to fight for the safety and stability of our

         21  country.  I feel that to a point, I was manipulated

         22  in signing because it was my understanding while I

         23  was protecting our country, my family was being

         24  protected.  Only to come home to be overcharged for

         25  wages I did not incur.  There was no explanation of
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          2  the unfair charges that would be rendered upon

          3  arrive of coming home to the States.

          4                 I was never told that the same

          5  coverages that were stated as allowances would later

          6  be considered as earned income. Nothing was stated

          7  about hospital, hazard duty, and combat zone pay

          8  being included in the mandatory military pay.  With

          9  these facts stated, I truly regret not being given

         10  time to retain a lawyer or an accountant look over

         11  these documents in this package.  I speak to you

         12  today with a heavy heart, because I feel that I have

         13  been pushed into a hard rock and place.  It was

         14  neither restrict my family from the BAH and BAS

         15  allowance, and not contribute to my pension fund, or

         16  sign this package, which was supposed to be designed

         17  for my family's stability as well as for my own.

         18  Only to receive a letter on August 11, 2006, stating

         19  that I am supposed to pay an amount of $56,000.  The

         20  options for repayment from this package was not

         21  negotiable and pressed upon us in a hostile manner.

         22                 I tried on numerous occasions to

         23  contact the Deputy Director, Cathleen Matula

         24  (phonetic), to inform her that I not only was

         25  disputing having to pay, but I was being overcharged
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          2  for the finances I didn't even receive.  Instead of

          3  a response to my concerns, I was sent a second

          4  letter on September 14th, stating I now had 15 days

          5  for repayment or face legal action.  So we, the

          6  servants of safety and protection, turn to you our

          7  Councilman, Mayor, and Director, to hear our

          8  concerns and try to work with us to correct this

          9  wrong that is being forced upon us.  Thank you for

         10  this opportunity for me to testify.

         11                 MS. MANISCALCO: Thank you.  My name

         12  is Amy Maniscalco.  My husband is a New York City

         13  Police Officer, and is in the New York Army National

         14  Guard.  I am also a volunteer in the military, in

         15  the capacity of a Family Readiness Coordinator at

         16  the Staten Island Armory.  And I thank you very

         17  much, the City Council, for allowing us our time

         18  here today.

         19                 On April 15, 2004, my greatest fears

         20  became reality. My husband received federal orders

         21  requiring that in 30 short days, he would be

         22  activated for Operation Iraqi Freedom III.  Days

         23  before he was scheduled to leave, he was required to

         24  submit his orders to the Military and Extended Leave

         25  Desk.  He was there, given a group of papers and
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          2  told, "sign this or you lose everything".  I have no

          3  doubt that the City had the best intentions in mind

          4  when they created the Extended Leave Benefits

          5  Package.  It's their method of collecting that I

          6  have a severe problem with.

          7                 The City's agreement, as you will

          8  hear repeatedly today, seems simple on the face of

          9  it.  They would pay my husband's base pay as though

         10  he was working in the City while he receives his

         11  military pay in Iraq.  And 30 days after my husband

         12  reported back to work for the City, he would enter

         13  into a reasonable payment plan.  We would just have

         14  to pay the City back the lesser of the two salaries

         15  he received while deployed.

         16                 The further I read into the

         17  agreement, however, red flags began to rise left and

         18  right.  The City was imposing what they would

         19  consider their legal right and what I would consider

         20  complete intrusion on ours, specifically, our

         21  finances.  Upon further examination of the

         22  agreement, I read, on the very bottom of one page,

         23  that the City defines military base pay to include

         24  basic allowance for housing, and basic allowance for

         25  sustenance.  These allowances are for the purpose of
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          2  maintaining a soldier's residence and to keep food

          3  on the table.  BAH is not based on what your actual

          4  rent or mortgage is.  It's determined on where you

          5  live, if you have dependents, and your rank.  A

          6  single soldier from Staten Island may have a $2,000

          7  a month mortgage, but his monthly BAH will only be

          8  $997.  The military is required by federal law to

          9  pay these allowances to soldiers on active duty.

         10  BAS, for an enlisted soldier, is a flat rate of

         11  approximately $267.  A 2002 Consumer Expenditure

         12  Survey on billsaver.com, a nationally recognized

         13  consumer service, indicated that the average

         14  household spent $5,435 per year on groceries.  One

         15  year of BAH is $3,200, $2,200 less than the national

         16  average.  The City does not provide an equivalent

         17  allowance, we would not receive overtime when my

         18  husband was deployed, and therefore, they in no way

         19  should be permitted to include these federally

         20  regulated entitlements in their definition of base

         21  pay.  Unfortunately, we quickly learned that while

         22  we tend to live frugally, there would be no way we

         23  could meet the bills on my husband's military

         24  salary.

         25                 In regards to medical coverage, we
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          2  also learned that none of my treating physicians, or

          3  their colleagues, have ever heard of, much less

          4  accepted the military's nightmare of an insurance

          5  coverage, TriCare.  There is one gynecologist on

          6  Staten Island who now take TriCare.  Knowing I would

          7  be alone for 18 months, our next course of action

          8  was disturbingly clear.  The vague agreement which

          9  gave the City far too much power over individual's

         10  finances, was not up for negotiation, there was no

         11  time to fight City Hall, and we were too emotionally

         12  drained to battle these issues.  With 72 hours

         13  before my husband was scheduled to leave, we had no

         14  choice but to take the City's plan, if only to keep

         15  my health intact, and make sure we met the monthly

         16  bills.

         17                 The issue of the BAH and BAS is only

         18  scratching the surface of this predicament.  For

         19  some, the lesser of the two salaries received during

         20  deployment may not be the military, but City salary.

         21    The City believes we should repay the gross salary

         22  that they paid us.  My husband paid taxes on his

         23  gross salary to the City while deployed.  It is

         24  beyond the reasonable thinking person why the City

         25  wouldn't ask for net monies back, since an employer
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          2  isn't entitled to an employees taxes, the government

          3  is. If my employer taxed my paycheck twice, I would

          4  call the IRS.

          5                 The City has waited five years to

          6  collect this money, and it is appalling that now,

          7  out of the blue, this Spring of 2006, they would

          8  demand repayment in unreasonable figures, strong

          9  arming employees, and threatening suspension.

         10                 We all want an amicable resolution

         11  and to be able to keep this plan going for future

         12  City employees soldiers in a sound, moral, and

         13  ethical manner.  I urge you today to vote in favor

         14  of Resolution 399.

         15                 One final note, I've come to learn

         16  that every major city in the country, as well as

         17  small counties across the country have similar plans

         18  for their employees.  It's a wonderful gesture of

         19  appreciation and doing the right thing for your own.

         20  Our own MTA paid their employees 20 hours per week

         21  just to keep them on their health benefits, and has

         22  not asked, and will not ask for anything in return.

         23  Thank you for your time.

         24                 MR. ZAK: Good afternoon gentlemen.

         25  Thank you for having us here.   My name is Michael
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          2  Zak, and I'm currently a police officer in the New

          3  York City Police Department.  Prior to that, I was a

          4  Sergeant in the United States Marine Corps.

          5                 The events of September 11, 2001

          6  affected me and my family greatly, as did many

          7  police officers, firefighters, EMTs, and other

          8  rescue personnel.  Immediately following the

          9  attacks, I, along with many others, worked 14 and 16

         10  hour days at the Ground Zero site.  In December of

         11  2001, I received notification that my Reserve Unit

         12  would be activated.  Three weeks later, I was to

         13  leave for Camp LeJeune, North Carolina.

         14                 There were many things to do during

         15  these three weeks in preparation for deployment.

         16  For one thing, I was scheduled to get married that

         17  year.  Upon receiving news that I would be

         18  activated, my fiancee and I decided to get married

         19  before I left.  I had three weeks to plan a wedding,

         20  move into another apartment, emotionally to prepare

         21  my family and fiancee, and get my finances in order,

         22  receive necessary medical attention, inform my job

         23  about my impending deployment, while continuing to

         24  work every day, and prepare a last will and

         25  testament.
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          2                 At some point during this three

          3  weeks, I was asked by the Police Department to sign

          4  a form which explained that I would continue to

          5  receive my police salary during my deployment, along

          6  with my salary from the military, and stipulated

          7  that I would remit the lesser of the two salaries

          8  back to the City upon returning from military

          9  service.

         10                 At that time, I didn't realize the

         11  City would include allowances for housing and food

         12  in the calculation for my military service.  Maybe

         13  with everything going on, I didn't read the contract

         14  closely, but after signing my last will and

         15  testament, reading the fine print was the last thing

         16  on my mind.  In addition, I didn't believe I had any

         17  choice in signing the document.  I was simply told

         18  to sign it.  I was not given any other choices.  I

         19  was not given any guidance regarding the fine points

         20  of the agreement, how it would affect my taxes, how

         21  the City planned to collect it, et cetera.  However,

         22  I did realize that I had to save one salary, which I

         23  attempted to do.

         24                 Upon my release from active duty, I,

         25  along with many other veterans who had returned,
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          2  asked about the repayments.  We asked the Police

          3  Department's Extended Military Leave Desk, which

          4  handled our paperwork about the repayment, and were

          5  told that no one had any answers.  In the meantime,

          6  bills began to gather, and taxes were paid on those

          7  salaries.  My year away prevented my professional

          8  development in the Department, and prevented me from

          9  earning overtime or night differential during that

         10  time.

         11                 I have no problem paying back the

         12  debt that I owe to the City.  My problem lies with

         13  the method that the City is using to calculate that

         14  debt.  The City wants me to pay back money that I

         15  paid taxes on, essentially taxing me and my family,

         16  and increasing my payment by more than one third.

         17  The City also demands that my military salary should

         18  include housing and food allowances.  Housing and

         19  food allowances are non- taxable benefits which I

         20  relied on to support my family while I was away from

         21  home. Allowances that the City refuses to offer us

         22  as police officers but one that it is very eager to

         23  take from us at the first opportunity they get.

         24  Thank you gentlemen.

         25                 MR. SEKZER: Good afternoon, and thank
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          2  you for allowing me to address you this afternoon.

          3  My name is Wilton Sekzer.  I am the Secretary for

          4  American Legion Post 460.

          5                 The problem facing my brothers and

          6  sisters who served in Iraq is unique in the annals

          7  of military versus city service.  They do not affect

          8  me personally.  My war came and went, and all I

          9  suffered were the taunts of baby killer.  I am a

         10  proud Vietnam veteran who volunteered to serve my

         11  country, and volunteered to service in Vietnam.

         12                 It's difficult for me to understand

         13  why the City of New York is waging this campaign

         14  against men and women who went forth to defend this

         15  country.  In fact, who are still defending this

         16  country, and will continue to do so into the future.

         17    The response to criticism is that they agreed to

         18  it.  Agreed to what is the question.  Agreed to

         19  ensure their families with financial secretary, and

         20  more importantly, to medical coverage?  What kind of

         21  way is this to treat emergency workers, many of whom

         22  suffered through 9- 11.  Who knows what medical

         23  catastrophe lies ahead for them.  We are only now

         24  learning about the toxic disasters that may affect

         25  them.  Many of those who went off to war volunteered
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          2  to do so immediately following 9- 11.

          3                 As to the specifics involved in this

          4  Resolution, there seems to be some legal argument as

          5  to whether the City can demand repayment for those

          6  benefits.  Is this an instance in which the City

          7  says the hell with them?  If they don't like us, let

          8  them hire an attorney out of their pocket and fight

          9  us.

         10                 Today, we ask that you be our

         11  attorney.  That you take up our cause.  That you

         12  show some degree of appreciation for what these men

         13  and women suffered.  Those of us who served in Nam

         14  never really received any sign of appreciation for

         15  our service. Please, don't do this again to our

         16  service people of today.

         17                 I ask that the Council approve the

         18  resolution.  My brothers and sisters deserve nothing

         19  less.  The went forward to fight my personal fight.

         20  I use the term "my personal fight" because I lost my

         21  son on 9- 11.  And I owe these officers a debt that

         22  I can never repay.

         23                 I might also ask why those who

         24  instituted this financial disaster were allowed to

         25  speak before us and then disappear into the wind.
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          2  Why weren't they required to remain and listen to

          3  our word, and then try to maintain some level of

          4  moral conscience for what they are doing?  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          7  much.  The next panel of four is Bryan Kidney.  And

          8  again, I apologize if I mispronounce any names.

          9  Ralph Viviello.  Please step forward. Celso Bemites.

         10  And Terri Mason.   And again, I still want to

         11  reiterate that the Mayor's Office is still in the

         12  room taking testimony down.  So again, we do have a

         13  Mayor Bloomberg representative here.  Okay, who am I

         14  missing?  Terri?  Right?

         15                 MS. MASON: I am one of the wives that

         16  was left behind.  First, I would like to thank all

         17  the men and women who are so valiantly fighting for

         18  our country.    At this time, and throughout the

         19  last five years, I hope that this issue will not

         20  dishearten you from your sense of duty and honor to

         21  our country. I for one, am very proud and thankful

         22  for you.

         23                 To Mayor Bloomberg and the City,

         24  shame on you.  How do you send a Welcome Home

         25  letter, Thanks for putting your life on the line for
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          2  our freedom, and by the way, you owe us $100,000.

          3  That's the long and short of the letter we received

          4  from the City.

          5                 My family received our orders  --

          6  and I say "my family", since we are all affected by

          7  these orders  --  on October 3, 2001.  My husband

          8  was shipped out on October 5th.  That gave us two

          9  days to get our affairs in order.  We were faced

         10  with some of the harsh realities of going to war.

         11  Where he was going?  How dangerous was this place?

         12  How do we meet our bills?  Am I going to lose my

         13  house?  Where I go for doctor visits?  If my eight-

         14  year old gets sick, where do I take her?  Where do I

         15  get our medicine? These are some of the questions

         16  racing through our heads when those orders came

         17  through.

         18                 We had no answers, but my husband had

         19  to make out his will, and we had to get our affairs

         20  in order  --  his affairs in order, as if he was

         21  never returning home.  It was a very scary time in

         22  our lives.  When the City presented us with the

         23  package, we thought it was an answer to some of our

         24  questions.  My husband felt a sense of relief that

         25  he would be taken care of by his employer while he
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          2  was gone.  He just had to concentrate on getting

          3  home safely  All I had to do was to explain how

          4  important it was for Daddy to go away and fight for

          5  our freedom to my eight- year old, who just wanted

          6  Daddy to come home to give her a kiss good night.  We

          7  of course signed the agreement, knowing that the

          8  City would look out for their fellow citizens in a

          9  time when all Americans should be looking out for

         10  one another.

         11                 I don't know if everyone understands

         12  that a major part of the Armed Forces is Reservists.

         13    Without these men and women standing up and

         14  volunteering to defend our country against these

         15  horrible forces that have the nerve to come into our

         16  country and kill our fellow Americans on that

         17  horrible day none of us can forget, where would we

         18  be?  We would be outnumbered, and we would not have

         19  made as many arrests and strides against terror

         20  throughout the world.  This is war, ladies and

         21  gentlemen.  We are at war, and it looks like a long

         22  one.  If this bill continues to haunt your

         23  Reservists, we can no longer afford to be

         24  Reservists.

         25                 These men and women are preventing a
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          2  nationwide draft.  When there are no more

          3  volunteers, young men and women of our country will

          4  be called upon to serve.  That will be a very sad

          5  day in America, and I for one, have seen enough sad

          6  days in this country to last a lifetime.

          7                 We say we are thankful for the men

          8  and women in uniform that are serving our country

          9  overseas.  Let us remember them when they come back

         10  to our City, and honor them as we should. Thank you

         11  for listening, and I hope you understand a little

         12  about how your actions here today will affect not

         13  only our lives, but the future of the country.

         14                 MR. KIDNEY: Good afternoon.  My name

         15  is Bryan Kidney.  I'm a retired New York City Police

         16  Detective.  I'm sorry? Thank you.  I would like to

         17  take this opportunity to thank you for enabling me

         18  to speak today.  I would especially like to thank

         19  Councilman McMahon, who has worked tirelessly on

         20  this issue from the beginning.  He is definitely a

         21  friend to the City's veterans.

         22                 For five weeks, I worked at Ground

         23  Zero, until Ii was activated on October 17, 2001.

         24  My orders were for a year with a possible year

         25  extension.  In December, 2001, while I was deployed,
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          2  my wife received a letter in the mail explaining the

          3  Extended Benefits Package.  She informed me of this

          4  package, and FedEx'd my the package while I was

          5  stationed down in Virginia. It provided me, at the

          6  time, a means to continue my family's medical

          7  coverage and supplement my meager military pay.

          8  Forced with the possibility of not seeing my family

          9  for a long period of time, if not ever again, we

         10  signed up to receive this benefit package.

         11                 On June 30, 2002, I was deactivated,

         12  and returned to my assignment in the Bronx Narcotic

         13  Division.  During the nine months I was activated,

         14  my total net salary was approximately $11,865.72.  I

         15  am not in it for the money, and neither is any of

         16  these veterans.  I also received a monthly stipend

         17  for food and housing, in the amount of $1,229 a

         18  month, for a total of $11,179.66.

         19                 On July 30, 2003, I retired from the

         20  New York City Police Department.  From the time I

         21  was activated to nearly five years later, I never

         22  once received a memo or any type of reminder from

         23  the City that they would recoup this money from me.

         24  Until March 17, 2006, I received a letter from the

         25  Payroll Section, thanking me for my service, and
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          2  requesting repayment of nearly $40,000 or my

          3  military pay, whichever was less.  I had to repay

          4  that money.  They gave me 30 days.

          5                 There was no offer of a repayment

          6  plan or any other method of repayment.  According to

          7  the City's calculations, my military pay is not my

          8  net salary of $11,865.  It is the gross pay of

          9  $17,657.  That's $5,092 of which I never received.

         10  Also included in this calculation is $11,179.66 the

         11  government paid me for food and housing.  This

         12  calculation is unfair, and causes an undue hardship

         13  on my family.

         14                 This sends a terrible message to the

         15  veterans who have served, and who continue to serve

         16  their country and this City. And that message is, we

         17  don't care about your sacrifice, or the sacrifice of

         18  your family.  We want our money.

         19                 I am not testifying here today  --

         20  excuse me.  I am testifying here today so that you

         21  can better understand this issue, and reach a fair

         22  resolution.  I think we've earned it.  Thank you.

         23                 MR. VITIELLO: How you doing?  I'm

         24  Fireman Ralph Vitiello.  I'm from Ladder 26.  And

         25  more importantly, I'm a Sergeant in the Marine
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          2  Corps.  I served as a Scout Sniper with the Second

          3  Battalion, 25th Marines.  And I was in combat

          4  operations in Anazaria (phonetic) for the first

          5  First Sniper Force.

          6                 And getting to the issue of how were

          7  we notified, my last tour at the World Trade Center

          8  was January 5.  I was on active duty January 15th.

          9  I talked to some people with the union that tried to

         10  get some guidance.  They were like, Just sign it.

         11  And you know, Don't worry about it.  The Gold Four

         12  guys, you know, they might have set a precedent, but

         13  nobody really had an answer for me. And you know, it

         14  was just confusing.  I just signed the paperwork.

         15  And you know, what I was thinking at the time was,

         16  what if I am killed or injured, you know, maybe the

         17  City's benefits will still help out with my family

         18  for any costs incurred.  And as time went on  --  I

         19  was on active duty for 23 months.  I didn't know

         20  that I would be gone for that long.  I only thought

         21  it would be maybe you know, six to nine months in

         22  Afghanistan, or something like that. But it wound up

         23  being almost two full years.

         24                 It's been five years now.  My life is

         25  changed.  I have a daughter.  I have a mortgage.  I
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          2  would be broke.  And that's all I have to say.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, I want to

          4  thank this panel for being here, because again, by

          5  putting your words into the record, obviously, it's

          6  going to help us as we go to negotiate with the

          7  Administration.  We have Council Member McMahon for

          8  a question.              COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: And

          9  my gratitude extended to you also.  Bryan, you said

         10  that they  --  when they sent you your dunning

         11  letter, they asked for  --  did they ask you for

         12  $40,000? Or $28,000?

         13                 MR. KIDNEY: Excuse me.  They asked me

         14  for $40,000 or my military salary, whichever was

         15  less.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: So which

         17  would have been the $17  --  just so we understand.

         18  Plus the $12 --  So it would have been the $40- or

         19  the $30-.  But either way  --  I got it.  Because

         20  $40- is what you received from the City.

         21                 MR. KIDNEY: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Gotcha.

         23  Okay.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our next panel.

         25  Anthony Dede, from the New York City Employee
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          2  Veterans; Basdeo Rugga.  Step forward.  Augusto

          3  Tavernier.  Augosto.  And Linda Kraemer.

          4                 Thank you for being here.  Just

          5  please state your name and give your testimony

          6  please.

          7                 MR. DEDE: Good afternoon.  My name is

          8  Anthony Dede. I'm speaking on behalf of my son

          9  Christopher Dede, who is a police officer in the

         10  79th Precinct, and a First Lieutenant serving in

         11  Iraq currently.

         12                 I want to thank the Council, and in

         13  particular, Council  --  Chairman Monserrate and

         14  McMahon for this bringing to the attention of

         15  everyone, this very important issue.

         16                 I'm not a veteran, but I speak on

         17  behalf of my son, who hopefully, will survive to be

         18  a veteran.  And his letter read --  "Dear Sir and

         19  Ma'am: The Army defines its moral code on a set of

         20  virtues that spell out the acronym LDRSHIP.  They

         21  stand for Loyalty, Duty, Respect, Selfless Service,

         22  Honor, Integrity, and Personal Courage.  All virtues

         23  that are mirrored by the police officer who

         24  tirelessly walks the streets from the Summer's heat

         25  to the icy chill of Winter's rain.  We do not
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          2  complain.  We simply persevere.  However, what the

          3  City of New York plans to do financially to those

          4  who return from over there, is a downright disgrace

          5  with the sacrifices that we make.

          6                 It's hard for those who have never

          7  served to understand the life of someone who does.

          8  As a police officer, I served the people of the City

          9  of New York.  As a soldier, I serve the people of

         10  the United States of America.  I am, and always will

         11  be a servant.  What we as police officers experience

         12  while serving the City, it is doubled as a soldier

         13  by serving the country.  The hours we work cannot be

         14  defined.  The sights we see and the cries we hear

         15  will never be seen or heard by many of our citizens.

         16    The stress of whether you will live to see the

         17  sunset or be felled by a terrorist explosive or a

         18  perpetrator's nine millimeter, cannot be understood

         19  by the businessman who works nine to five, and

         20  drives home safe, because of people like us.

         21                 Most will never understand the tears

         22  of our families cries when a letter arrives in the

         23  mail, ordering you to deploy to war.  Or when our

         24  caskets are carried underneath 13 stripes and 50

         25  white stars on the field of blue.  They will never
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          2  understand our sacrifice and our cause to protect

          3  not us, but them, and bring freedom to their lives.

          4                 But to the issue at hand.  To rebuke

          5  my family's health care because I do not accept a

          6  salary that I would be forced to pay back upon my

          7  return from the theater, disgraces the honor I have

          8  from serving.  Double taxation from the City on the

          9  salary the federal government recognizes as tax

         10  free, shows how our loyalty is tarnished and not

         11  appreciated.  The fact that I must repay my gross

         12  salary with my net, turns us into free money

         13  lenders.  While the City of New York indisputably

         14  holds the legal right to do this, when did we put

         15  aside our morals, our dignity, integrity, and

         16  humility to those who serve us?  When did the City

         17  decide to turn away it's ethics, and make a profit

         18  from those who understand that in their oath to

         19  protect, they will experience sacrifice, loss, debt,

         20  fear, and the worst humanity has to offer.

         21                 I end with this quote from John

         22  Stewart Mills.  "War is an ugly thing.  But not the

         23  ugliest of things.  The decayed and degraded state

         24  of moral and patriotic feeling, which thinks that

         25  nothing is worth war, is much worse.  The person who
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          2  has nothing for which he is willing to fight,

          3  nothing which is more important than his own

          4  personal safety, is a miserable creature, and has no

          5  chance of being free, unless made and kept so by the

          6  exertions of better men than himself".

          7                 All I can ask that you, as the City

          8  Council, decide what is in the best interest of

          9  those who served.  The citizens, brothers, sisters,

         10  mothers, fathers, husbands, and wives.  All of us

         11  who are over there.

         12                 Fraternally, Christopher C. Dede,

         13  First Lieutenant, Military Police Corps, Police

         14  Officer, 79th Precinct.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MR. TAVERNIER: My name is Augusto

         17  Tavernier.  I'm Detective for the Emergency Services

         18  Unit, NYPD.  I'm also a Sergeant Major  --  I'm the

         19  Commanding Sergeant Major for the 408 Battalion at

         20  Fort Tyler.

         21                 In 1991, December 1990, I was

         22  deployed for Operation Desert Shield, which became

         23  Desert Storm.  When I left my family, I was proud to

         24  go and serve my country.  The problem with that

         25  deployment was that my wife and my child had to go
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          2  get benefits, medical benefits, dental, from the VA

          3  hospital.  Fine facility. But my wife told me when I

          4  came back, Don't ever do that to me again.  I would

          5  never go there again.

          6                 So again I was deployed in 1994.  In

          7  1995.  In 1997. I want out with the State Department

          8  to Haiti for one year.  All these times, I was

          9  paying $500, approximately, a month with an

         10  insurance company named COBRA, to support my

         11  family's medical benefits and everything else.

         12                 So when the City offered, after

         13  September 11th, to take over  --  to continue to pay

         14  and with these benefits, I thought it was a great

         15  thing.  It's funny how good things happen when

         16  you're on your way out to war.  Everybody praises

         17  you.  The City jumps on the patriotic bandwagon.

         18  And it was a great thing. Everybody was hurrah,

         19  everything was great.

         20                 When I came back, I asked very

         21  specifically at the MELD, the Military Extended

         22  Leave Desk, what about this payment that we're

         23  supposed to make.  They told me, Don't worry about

         24  it. That was in '03.

         25                 I was deployed again in '04.  Same
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          2  thing.  Came back, asked the City, what is it that I

          3  have to do, because I don't want to owe anything.

          4  Don't worry about it, we won't even  -- don't say

          5  anything, because I don't think we're able to

          6  calculate the sums and stuff like that.

          7                 I'm a simple guy, you know.  I like

          8  to know that I served my country.  I was raised in

          9  Brooklyn with five other kids. I go by the tower,

         10  because since I was a kid, I've been seeing these

         11  towers up there.  I go by there and I don't see

         12  them, I still miss them.  Never mind the thousands

         13  of people that died when they collapsed.  And police

         14  officers, my friends, that died in that disaster.

         15                 So when I serve the City, it has to

         16  do  --  it's more of a political diplomatic thing

         17  that all these discussion. It's more a humanitarian

         18  thing.  And I think we need to look at this war as

         19  far as the police officers, from a humanitarian

         20  level. Because I saw a representative of the City

         21  sit here  --  and I'm going to tell you right now,

         22  they lied.  They lied about a few things.  We don't

         23  accrue sick leaves in the NYPD.  I don't know about

         24  anybody else.  So when they say that you know, that

         25  we could accrue sick leave and pay like that, that's
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          2  not the truth.  That's not a true statement.

          3                 And then there's a lot of I don't

          4  knows.  When I leave this place today, I need to go

          5  back to my wife and tell her what happened, because

          6  we owe $142,000 to the City.  That was my letters.

          7  And I need to tell her that we don't need to put a

          8  second mortgage on the house.  We don't need to sell

          9  the second car.  I need to tell her these things.

         10  So it was important for me to come here, and hear

         11  from the City that some of these things, even though

         12  this is some of the statements they were making

         13  would work, and would work, and it sounds like the

         14  commercial.  This is real.  My life is real.  These

         15  hundreds of cops that have gone and fought for our

         16  country, it's real to us.  When we leave this

         17  country, there are families that matters that have

         18  to be  --  that we have to resolve when we come

         19  back.  Because the separation has a serious impact

         20  on the family itself.  Never mind the structure of

         21  our dream, the financial dream.  It's all shattered.

         22    It's all gone But the family itself, the kids.  I

         23  have a 16- year old that I have not seen grow.  I

         24  have to now go back and try to understand, you know,

         25  make understand my absence, you know.  These things
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          2  are important.  These are the things that the City

          3  needs to look at. From a humanitarian perspective,

          4  what these cops  --  you wanted to see a face.  This

          5  is the face.  The face is, when I came back, I

          6  expected the City to work on some kind of medal to

          7  give to the officers, to the people.  Not on how

          8  much money we're supposed to pay them back. Thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: One second.

         11  When did you join 225?  Second Battalion, 225th

         12  Marines.  When did you join that unit?  It says here

         13  in your testimony.  I'm sorry.  Wrong veteran. I'm

         14  sorry.

         15                 MS. KRAEMER: Okay.  My name is Linda

         16  Kraemer.  I'm the wife of an NYPD Sergeant and Staff

         17  Sergeant in the Air National Guard.  I'm going to

         18  repeat a lot of the stuff, obviously, everybody has

         19  said here, and I feel like we're preaching to the

         20  choir now, but I think it should still be said.

         21                 The last five years have been very

         22  stressful for all the families involved here.  When

         23  my husband was activated a month after 9- 11, he had

         24  a few days to get his affairs in order before he had

         25  to leave his job, home, and family.  When given the
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          2  option to keep our health benefits, it was a no-

          3  brainer.  I have a serious heart condition that

          4  requires constant medical care.  I was also

          5  pregnant.  So we really weren't about to turn down

          6  medical benefits during that time.

          7                 I was very concerned from day one.  I

          8  have had numerous conversations with the Military

          9  Extended Leave Desk, asking  --  from back to

         10  October of 2001  --  asking how is this going to get

         11  paid back?  What about the taxes?  This doesn't make

         12  sense.  You know, everybody puts a different amount

         13  of money into the pension.  How is that going to

         14  work out?  And like everyone else here, we were kind

         15  of met with the "don't worry about it" response.

         16                 I can honestly say  --  and I'm sure

         17  I speak for everyone  --  had we known that this is

         18  how the payback would work, or that this activation

         19  would have lasted as long as it has, a lot of people

         20  never would have signed that contract.  My husband

         21  has been on active duty for four and a half out of

         22  the last five years. At a Sergeant's salary, you

         23  know, it's almost laughable.  You could do the math.

         24    I haven't gotten my letter yet, because he's still

         25  on active duty.  He did have six months off in the
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          2  middle there.  But based on my calculations, it's

          3  going to be well over $300,000 when it comes down to

          4  it.

          5                 So this representative to sit here

          6  and say no one is losing their homes over this, is

          7  garbage. I will absolutely lose my home over this.

          8  There is no question.  My husband could work for

          9  sixty years from today, for the Police Department,

         10  with the ten percent out of his check, and take away

         11  all those vacation days, it would never pay back the

         12  debt without me having to sell my home.

         13                 You know, leaving for active duty was

         14  very stressful, but returning to the job has now

         15  proven to be a greater stress than we possibly could

         16  have imagined.  Which is really a shame, considering

         17  that my husband and all the people in this room,

         18  will be far better at their job, having the training

         19  and experience that they've received over the last

         20  five years, through the military.  That should be

         21  considered invaluable to the City of New York.

         22  Instead, we feel like the prodigal son returning

         23  now.

         24                 So you know, help us find a better

         25  solution to this. I've been working with a Nassau
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          2  County legislator, Dave Mahinis (phonetic), who I

          3  know has sent out some letters to Hiram Monserrate

          4  and Joe Addabbo.  I don't know if you've received

          5  those letters yet, but they should be in your mail

          6  soon.  Nassau County has a really good way of

          7  dealing with this.  You know, there again, paying

          8  the difference between the two salaries.  And no one

          9  is coming back to a bill.

         10                 And this is just going to continue.

         11  You know, we're just going to get activated again.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Hold it one

         14  second.  I just want to apologize, but you can't go

         15  home and tell your wife that this is resolved to

         16  your satisfaction.  But what you can tell her is two

         17  things.  Is that there are Members of the City

         18  Council who are committed to bring this to a better

         19  conclusion for you.  And we won't rest until it's

         20  done.  And also, I know it's not a full ray of

         21  sunshine, what you want, but it's a ray of hope,

         22  because today the Administration is at a totally

         23  different place than they were three months ago.

         24  Three months ago, they said basically, No, they've

         25  signed off on this, that's it.  You know, we don't
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          2  have to do anything.  At least today, we heard a

          3  willingness to look at it. And I know that in your

          4  personal services, that's not good enough, but I'm

          5  much more optimistic after hearing them speak today

          6  than I was when I came in this morning, and I'm more

          7  optimistic that we're all deriving a collective will

          8  to push this even to a better solution, and taking

          9  into consideration like overtime and all that. So

         10  it's not the answer she wants, and I know that wives

         11  are not happy unless they get the answers that they

         12  want, but I commit to you that we'll continue to

         13  work on this.

         14                 Our next panel, Joe Mastrata, Ronny

         15  Diz, Jim Coan, and Paul Ciorra.  Just please state

         16  your name and give your testimony please.

         17                 MR. DIZ: Sir, my name is Ronny Diz.

         18  I'm a police officer in the New York City Police

         19  Department.  And I'm also the President of the

         20  American Legion NYPD Post 460.  Sir, from all of us

         21  in the Post, we'd like to thank all of you for

         22  having this hearing and for having us here to

         23  testify.

         24                 However, just let me state this.  I'm

         25  still in the Reserves.  I've been in the Reserves in
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          2  the military for over 24 years now.  And I'm

          3  scheduled to go to Iraq in 2008.  I've not been

          4  there yet.  But however, after members of my Post

          5  have come back from Afghanistan, Iraq, the Horn of

          6  Africa, Guantanamo Bay, and other Homeland Security

          7  missions throughout the United States.  We have over

          8  300 members in my Post, and the members of my Post

          9  and the Board members are totally supportive of what

         10  you're doing.  We totally support the passing of

         11  Resolution 399 alpha.  If you need any help, any

         12  further testimony from anybody within our Post,

         13  please let us know, we'll help you out.

         14                 However, I want to ask you about  --

         15  please, don't be short- sighted about this.  And

         16  what I heard from you gentlemen up there not going

         17  to  --  don't be short- sighted like the present

         18  Administration has been short- sighted, by stating

         19  that in September of 2001, we thought that the war

         20  in Afghanistan would be over in a couple of months.

         21                 I am also an officer in the Army

         22  Reserve, and two years ago, I graduated from the

         23  Commander General Staff College. The Army is

         24  planning to go to war in the Marine Corps for the

         25  next 100 years because of this war.  That is a major
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          2  impact on the future of this City.  When Reservists

          3  who have not been activated yet, like myself, come

          4  back from overseas, and will continue to do so in

          5  the coming decades, this will have a tremendous

          6  impact on our lives.

          7                 So gentlemen, I urge you to do

          8  whatever you can for us.  I believe that you're

          9  going to.  And again, thank you very much for

         10  getting this hearing off the ground.  And please

         11  pass with the rest of the City Council, Resolution

         12  399 alpha, and everything that follows.  Thank you.

         13                 MR. MASTROTA: My name is Joseph

         14  Mastrota.  I'm a Sergeant, NYPD, the 46th Precinct.

         15  I'm a Captain in the U.S. Army Reserve, and Vice

         16  President of American Legion Post 460, the Police

         17  Post.  Thank you for hearing me today, and I know

         18  you're going to hear a lot of repetitive, but just

         19  bear with me, and please take the points that you

         20  have not heard.

         21                 The City's Extended Benefits Package

         22  for mobilized employees is severely flawed.  Besides

         23  over- billing, double taxation, and overboard

         24  methods of calculating amounts, it also shifts tax

         25  recover totally to the recipients.  Who in turn have
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          2  to make adjustments to the federal government for

          3  both tax and Social Security recovery.  It has

          4  created a quagmire of convoluted individually tax

          5  law headaches that will cost the recipient thousands

          6  of dollars to employ tax lawyer or tax accountant to

          7  help attempt financial recovery.  What would

          8  motivate the City to chose a method like this, that

          9  creates a multitude of repayment issues is

         10  questionable.

         11                 When the collection process was

         12  started, we, the Post, invited the Office of

         13  Veterans Affairs, the Department of Finance,

         14  Payroll, and the Mayor's Office to attend a meeting

         15  at Fort Totten to answer issues related to this

         16  repayment.  We began to see the problems.  No City

         17  agency attended besides the phone calls and the

         18  mails that we sent them.  We were left to figure

         19  this issue out on our own, just as we were left to

         20  figure out the over billing and tax recovery.  To be

         21  billed gross amounts on salaries to be repaid, has

         22  those involved paying all taxes on funds as if it

         23  was income, which it is not.  That can be up to 48

         24  percent of the amount.  Then paying back both.

         25                 There are several other options that
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          2  could have been explored, that have a scaled benefit

          3  to their method, but all are fair and uncomplicated.

          4    A differential pay could have been use, whereas

          5  the member gets a differential in salary, if the

          6  City salary is higher than the military.  The City

          7  would assume pension and medical, and would not seek

          8  repayment for funds.  Or, the City could have paid

          9  gross salary and the member receives a 1099, which

         10  is filed with the IRS to pay income tax.  The monies

         11  left would be returned to the City.  The City could

         12  have also given the money as a loan, whereas the

         13  payments would have been tax deductible.

         14                 Honestly, when I read the Extended

         15  Benefits Package, and believed full salary meant not

         16  gross.  I put trust in the City to look after my

         17  best interests.  To me, it was inconceivable that

         18  the City would collect gross amounts, to the extreme

         19  amounts of money that would be asked for, that was

         20  never received.  My interpretation of the amount was

         21  net pay.  I had more than one person review the

         22  contract, who were at different levels of financial

         23  skill.  More than one understood a different

         24  interpretation of the amount the contract was asking

         25  for, as far as City salary.  And as far as the
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          2  military salary, it integrates into the contract, by

          3  bolstering the debt by including the entitlements of

          4  BAH and BAS to pad the pot, and bring it closer to,

          5  or above the City salary.  This indicates the City's

          6  preposition (sic) not to take a loss on the

          7  collection, a preposition that would be reoccurring

          8  throughout the duration of this

          9                 repayment.  This process has another

         10  major flaw.  If it is obeyed, those involved would

         11  receive a zero percent benefit for their service.

         12  This is unpatriotic, when you compare it with what

         13  other states are doing.

         14                 The large amount of time that has

         15  passed before collection was started, for whatever

         16  reason, will cause some filed tax returns to go over

         17  three years.  Adjustments on a three- year old file

         18  return will not be allowed by the IRS.

         19                 The Resolution 399 to remove the BAS

         20  and the BAH entitlements is a step in the right

         21  direction, but far from the solution.  The solution

         22  will only be achieved by having the City

         23  representatives who were authorized to make changes

         24  on this issue, take some time with representatives

         25  of those involved, to reach a fair agreement.

                                                            126

          1  VETERANS AND CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 We are not cry babies that are

          3  attempting to avoid the money owed.  We are simply

          4  arguing not to be exploited for serving the country

          5  and the City honorably.  I never expected to make a

          6  profit from being mobilized, but I did expect not to

          7  go into a financial indebtedness, especially at a

          8  pivotal moment in my career, that of retiring.  And

          9  retirement is no reprieve.  This all seeing

         10  financial debacle also affects retirees too.  They

         11  have not been offered any deductible repayments, and

         12  are being subject to large bills at this time when

         13  their income is substantially reduced after

         14  separation.

         15            Ultimately, this is the City's own

         16  inattention and lack of planning that created this

         17  hardship for those who least deserve it.  A large

         18  reduction or absolution of the amount owed would

         19  demonstrate the appreciation for time served and the

         20  sacrifices made.  As well as heal the wound opened

         21  up by this collection action.  At a minimum, an

         22  earnest effort just to simply work with us on the

         23  amount owed, rather than bending over backwards to

         24  help us pay for the inflated amounts.  In addition,

         25  a rapid implementation of a settlement to protect
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          2  future mobilized soldiers and specify exact

          3  reasonable amounts for those already served.

          4                 I can't help but feel we are bending

          5  over backwards to work with this Administration on

          6  this issue.  At this point, it would be far easier

          7  to turn this over to courts, and let the lawyers

          8  make the arguments.  This would cost cessation of

          9  payments and a substantial delay on payments

         10  regardless of the outcome. Thank you for hearing me

         11  on this.

         12                 MR. CIORRA: Good afternoon.  My name

         13  is Paul Ciorra. I'm a Captain in NYPD Intelligence

         14  Division.  I'm also a Major in the United States

         15  Army National Guard, 101st Calvary, Staten Island.

         16                 I just want to spend some time, my

         17  two minutes, rebutting what was said by DCAS

         18  earlier.  Some of the statements they made.  One,

         19  the best package in the United States is in New York

         20  City.  And already that was brought out, that's not

         21  true. Philadelphia, LA, Chicago, clean slate.  Those

         22  cities weren't attacked.  New York City was.

         23                 There was not an option in reality,

         24  to sign that paper when we went to leave.  It was a

         25  no- brainer.  And for those that didn't have time,
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          2  didn't even get to read it, and if  --  I want

          3  someone to get a copy that New York City PD one, it

          4  referenced an order, but didn't have it on what you

          5  signed on.  I'm sure we can get a copy of that.

          6                 Upon returning, when you called the

          7  Military Extended Leave Desk, and asked them how do

          8  I repay?  Here's the answer.  Do not worry about it.

          9    They're never going to go after it.  They don't

         10  know how to.  And here we are, five years later.

         11                 It's also a little late, I believe,

         12  for them now to work on a centralized system.  And

         13  that only happened because of you Councilmen.  You

         14  know that would have never happened.  We would have

         15  been individually tortured out here.  So thank you

         16  very much. Thank you.

         17                 We already talked about the threats

         18  to soldiers. You have the letters about if they pass

         19  on, or are killed, they would be still the money be

         20  given in by their families.  Also about threats of

         21  suspension, and collections and such.

         22                 Food allowance is not a windfall.

         23  Those that are officers, not in the combat theater,

         24  but in the States, pay for their meals.  So that's

         25  not a windfall of money.  I don't know where that's
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          2  coming from.  Enlisted, I don't even know if they

          3  got it, but an officer pays for his meals.

          4                 Ten percent repayment is way too high

          5  if this does happen.  The ten percent, I think, that

          6  needs to be lowered.  For so for down the line, if

          7  there's a payment, that needs to be lowered.

          8                 And I was hurt in theater.  Someone

          9  had a question about injuries.  I was hurt in

         10  theater.  When I returned, I had surgery on a

         11  military base, Fort Drum, and what happened with me

         12  is, you weren't released from active duty until you

         13  were physically able to.  So even though my unit

         14  went home, back in December, I was kept on active

         15  duty, basically to mend myself, to return.  I don't

         16  know about any soldiers who are still injured that

         17  can't work, but have been released.  But that's

         18  about injuries.

         19                 That's all.  Thank you sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         21  much.  I really appreciate your time and testimony

         22  today.  Thank you.

         23                 Our last panel today, Jim Coan, NYPD

         24  Military Veteran.  Michael Schilling.  Gamalier

         25  Mendez.  And Robert Kelly. Anybody?  Thank you.  Any
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          2  of those names called?  This is the last panel for

          3  today.  Please state your name and give your

          4  testimony please.

          5                 MR. KELLY: My name is R. Robert

          6  Kelly.  I'm a retired Detective.  I worked in the

          7  Firearms Investigation Unit. I'm still presently a

          8  Reservist.

          9                 I'd just like to say  --  I'd like to

         10  thank all you guys for being here, and giving us the

         11  time for this.  Especially Councilman McMahon.

         12                 In short, before 9- 11, I worked two

         13  jobs, like most probably every fireman and cop does,

         14  to support a family.  When 9 11 happened, I spent 23

         15  straight days, 16- hour tours, on the pile, cleaning

         16  up the mess, helping out with finding whoever we

         17  could find.  I had one week.  I got notified I was

         18  being activated on October 4th.  One week later, I

         19  was sent down to Virginia, and so in that amount of

         20  time, we didn't really have that much thought

         21  process in what to do.  We kind of just signed the

         22  paper, and we went.

         23                 Combining my salary, I always did a

         24  lot of overtime. Combining my military salary with

         25  my base NYPD salary over that period of time of my
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          2  activation, I was still $20,000 short of what I

          3  would have made in the NYPD.  So the City saved

          4  themselves $20,000 by me being activated.  Now some

          5  people before said it was double dipping.  I think

          6  it was just subsidy, okay?  That's all I got to say.

          7    So as far as overtime and everything goes, I think

          8  most members do mostly overtime to survive, and by

          9  people saying double dipping, I don't believe it's

         10  double dipping, it's just survival with the amount

         11  of money that the City gave us.  Thank you.

         12                 MR. DOYLE: My name is Kevin Doyle.

         13  I'm a Lieutenant in the New York City Police

         14  Department, and a Chief Petty Officer in the United

         15  States Navy.  I was activated with Robert Kelly on

         16  October 4, 2001.  We literally went from Ground Zero

         17  down to Pennsylvania was our first stop.  When we

         18  were in the room on October 4th, there was ten

         19  people present in this room, and six of us were New

         20  York City police officers.  All six had a cold.  Why

         21  did we have a cold?  Because we spent a lot of time

         22  at Ground Zero. When Navy officials came into the

         23  room, they said, "Your hardship board is ready to

         24  meet".  All six of us looked up to him and said,

         25  What hardship board?  We didn't request one.  You
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          2  called us, we're here.  They looked, and they said,

          3  oh, okay.  The four others that were in that room,

          4  two of them went to a hardship board.  They weren't

          5  New York City policemen or firemen.  We did what we

          6  had to do.  We responded.  We left our families.

          7                 This form came down for us to sign

          8  while we were already activated.  We had four weeks

          9  of TriCare, which my wife refused to use, because no

         10  one knew what it was.  Once we were able to get our

         11  GHI back, everything was okay.

         12                 Now I got my bill.  I got my second

         13  bill.  I went to them.  Now it's going to cost me

         14  $387 every two weeks for the next hundred and four

         15  paychecks.  I have 20 years in, and if I leave, they

         16  want their money right away.  Where did the money

         17  go?  That $240 a month in food.  If you go and you

         18  look at the computation, it costs $7.50 to eat in

         19  the galley for three meals.  It's approximately

         20  $8.00 a day.  The other $.50 is for shaving cream,

         21  hair cuts.  The City wants it.  Where did my housing

         22  allowance go? It went for housing.  It went for

         23  extra babysitters.  It went so my wife, who works,

         24  didn't cook a meal for a year.  Where did they eat?

         25  She came home and she took the kids out.  So they're
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          2  going to get their $387 every two weeks, but

          3  hopefully, I see that you know, the Council is

          4  behind us.  So hopefully, things will change.  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: I have a

          7  couple of questions.  He said he at the Firearms  --

          8                 MR. KELLY: Investigations.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE:

         10  Investigations Unit.  And you worked  --

         11                 MR. DOYLE: Transit Bureau

         12  Headquarters.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: You have 20

         14  years on, and you're a Lieutenant right now?

         15                 MR. DOYLE: That's correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Both Navy?

         17                 MR. DOYLE: That's correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Where is your

         19  Reserve Unit?

         20                 MR. KELLY: We are a Naval Security

         21  Force, Willow Grove.  It's a Naval Air Station about

         22  25 miles north of Philly.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MONSERRATE: Of Philly.

         24                 Do we have anyone else?  So we're

         25  going to be closing out.  You gentlemen are the last
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          2  two individuals testifying today.  Right?  I just

          3  want to say, now that most of the media is gone, and

          4  the Administration is gone, I was a Marine, and I

          5  was a New York City Police Officer.  And I was a

          6  Reservist activated for the First Persian Gulf, in

          7  1990.  So I understand a lot of your hardships.  And

          8  I believe that the Administration is sincere in what

          9  they have expressed to us in willingness to review

         10  this, to find some solution.  I also know that

         11  myself, Joe Addabbo, Council Member McMahon, and

         12  Tony Avella and others are going to ensure that

         13  sincerity.  So we're going to work towards resolving

         14  this one way or the other.

         15                 And I just want to say to all of you,

         16  thank you for your service, Semper Fi, and thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Let me also  --

         19  let me reiterate what Council Member Monserrate

         20  said.  I want to thank him and his staff for working

         21  with my Committee, and also the staff members of

         22  Council Member McMahon and Council Member Avella.

         23  The bottom line is this.  We need to go forward with

         24  this issue, in an expedited manner.  We cannot delay

         25  any longer what is happened to our City employees
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          2  who have dedicated themselves to the City and to our

          3  country.  And for that we thank you, and we will

          4  look forward to working with the Administration who

          5  are still here, listening to your concerns.  We will

          6  work with them and find a resolution to the issues

          7  at hand.  So thank you very much.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 4:00 p.m.)
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